
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


FC Sheriff's Office- Field Operations Major Tommy Nations


Captain Barry Babb Thursday, September 25, 2008


Approval of request by the Sheriff's Department Field Operations Division to replace a 2006 Ford Crown Victoria, which was 


completely destroyed in an automobile accident on July 3, 2008, using an $8,699.30 insurance  reimbursement and $18,651.70 from 


the Vehicle Replacement Fund to purchase the replacement vehicle.


A patrol vehicle with 55,907 miles was involved in an accident on July 3, 2008.   The Sheriff's Office investigated this accident as well 


as the Georgia State Patrol.  The Traveler's Insurance Company inspected this vehicle and designated this vehicle as "totaled"  and 


will reimburse Fayette County $8,699.30.   An approximate cost to replace this vehicle is $27,351.00.  This cost less the insurance 


reimbursement of $8699.30 leaves a balance of  $18,651.70 needed to replace the vehicle.


Approval to allow for the replacement of a Sheriff's Department vehicle, using the insurance reimbursement and funds from the 


Vehicle Replacement Fund to pay for it.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Field Operations Department requires $18,651.70 additional funds in addition to the $8699.30 


reimbursement from Traveler's Insurance to replace this needed vehicle.


No


No


Yes Thursday, September 25, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes





		Sheriff- Vehicle Replacement Agenda Request File.pdf

		Sheriff- Vehicle Replacement Backup

		1. FCSO Travelers Insurance Report

		2. FCSO damaged vehicle

		3. FCSO damaged vehicle

		4. FCSO damaged vehicle

		5. FCSO damaged vehicle

		6. FCSO damaged vehicle












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Water System Tony Parrott


Tony Parrott September 25, 2008


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #676 for Pressure Reducing Valves to the sole bidder, PMC Enterprises, in the 


amount of $41,010.00.


This is an annual bid. Although this is somewhat specialized work, a total of six vendors were notified. Also, even though this is the 


sole bid, it is in keeping with previous years' bids. Fayette County has used this vendor in the past and is satisfied with their service. 


 


This bid is for testing and repair of Pressure Reducing Valves (PRV) within the Fayette County Water System's distribution system.  


This testing and repair is regular maintenance that is done on a yearly basis, or as needed.


Approval to award the bid to PMC Enterprises in the amount of $41,010.00.


Funds were budgeted in the Fayette County Water System budget under the Repairs and Maintenance Account.


Yes annually


No


Yes Thursday, September 25, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes













		Water System- Bid #676 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- Bid #676 Backup










MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners
   September 3, 2008


     3:30 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Wednesday, September  3, 2008,
at 3:30  p.m. in the Commissioners’ Conference Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall
Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________


CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN


Chairman Jack Smith called the September 3, 2008 Workshop Meeting to order at 3:35 p.m.


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA


Commissioner Robert Horgan moved to accept the agenda as printed.  Commissioner Herb Frady seconded the motion.
No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


CONSENT AGENDA


Commissioner Horgan moved to accept Consent Agenda Items 1-3.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


1. Approval of Public Works’ recommendation to award a contract for the preparation of the
Comprehensive Transportation Plan to Glatting, Jackson, Anglin in the amount of $311,780.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Approval of the Road Department’s recommendation to award Bid #675 to Southeastern Road
Treatment at a cost of $30,201.60 to continue the Road Department’s Dust Control Program.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of the August 14, 2008 Board of Commissioners Minutes.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
September 3, 2008
Page 2


OLD BUSINESS


A. Discussion of the Vehicle Replacement Committee’s recommendation for replacement of 19 vehicles
included in the Fiscal Year 2009 budget.  This item was tabled during the August 28, 2008 Board of
Commissioners Meeting.


Assistant Finance Director Toni Jo Howard said that the Vehicle Replacement Committee was requesting that 19
vehicles be replaced, that replacement of those vehicles was previously approved in the Fiscal Year 2009 budget, and
that pursuant to the Vehicle Replacement Policy, the vehicles qualified for replacement.


Commissioner Eric Maxwell reminded the Board that he was one of the Commissioners who had asked for this item to
be tabled during the August 28, 2008 meeting, and explained that the reason he asked for the item to be tabled was due
to his belief that the Vehicle Replacement Committee may not be adequately researching or analyzing alternative fuel
vehicles, even though fuel prices are continuing to rise.  He made it clear he had no problem with the criteria specified
in the Vehicle Replacement Policy that is utilized for replacing vehicles, and that he would support the other
Commissioners if they voted to replaced the 19 vehicles as requested, however, he suggested that either the Vehicle
Replacement Committee or some other committee be tasked to research alternative fuel vehicles.  


Chairman Smith asked how many alternative fuel vehicles Fayette County currently has, and Interim County
Administrator Jack Krakeel replied that the County has 22 propane fuel vehicles as well as a propane fueling facility
located at Fleet Maintenance.  Mr. Krakeel continued saying that, several years ago, Ford had halted production of
propane fuel trucks due to problems those trucks were experiencing, but now those problems had been alleviated.  He
said that during that time a financial analysis was done by Fayette County that compared savings that could be achieved
by using propane fuel vehicles versus standard fuel vehicles, and that a decision was made not to move forward with
acquiring alternative fuel vehicles due to the results of the analysis.  Mr. Krakeel stated that  with the rise of fuel prices,
another analysis would now be warranted in order to determine if it is beneficial for Fayette County to obtain more
alternate fuel vehicles, and informed the Board that he has directed Fleet Maintenance Director Bill Lackey to analyze
the non-public safety vehicles Fayette County is acquiring to determine what  would be needed to transition the County’s
fleet to run on propane.  He added that some of the County vehicles can be retrofitted to run on propane fuel at a cost
of approximately $3,000 to $6,000, but if that cost is equal to the amount of potential fuel savings during the life of a
vehicle the question of why go through the process would have to be answered.  He concluded by giving examples of
how the County is currently saving money in other related areas by downsizing some vehicles in some departments and
by using good parts from older vehicles to replace bad parts in better vehicles.


Commissioner Horgan asked how the determination was made regarding what vehicle would be the replacement for
another vehicle.  Ms. Howard answered that the decision was based on the needs of each department in order to
accomplish their work as well as the type of vehicle needed to provide the services required from each department.


Further discussion occurred regarding the cost of vehicles obtained through State contracts versus vehicles obtained
from local and metro Atlanta dealerships, the criteria used to determine if a vehicle should be replaced, and how
decisions are made regarding what type of vehicle can replace another type of vehicle.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
September 3, 2008
Page 3


Chairman Smith directed that a committee be established to evaluate alternative fuel vehicles for future purchases in
order to determine potential fuel cost savings and to alleviate part of the pollution index that metro Atlanta has.  Mr.
Krakeel suggested the Vehicle Replacement Committee study the issue comprehensively and to use their findings as
part of the criteria in their decision making processes.  Commissioner Maxwell agreed to the request as long as a report
would be available within three months from the Vehicle Replacement Committee on the issue. The other
Commissioners concurred.


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve the Vehicle Replacement Committee’s recommendation to replace 19 vehicles
that have been included in the Fiscal Year 2009 budget.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  No further
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


B. Approval of the revised Employee Performance Appraisal Document as presented by Mr. Scot Wrighton
of the University of Georgia and the Human Resources Department.


Mr. Scot Wrighton began his presentation by saying Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel had informed him, on
behalf of the Board of Commissioners, that Fayette County was interested in moving towards a pay for performance
system that would reward employees for exceeding expectations and that would document employee performance in
a manner that was both fair and appropriate.  He said before that goal could be met it was important that all other factors
that have a bearing on employee compensation but are not related to employee performance, such as COLAs, be
removed from the equation since the topic in consideration was about developing an evaluation form that determines
if specific employees are functioning above expectations.  He said that determination would be aided by the right kind
of evaluation forms, training for supervisors, and appropriate follow-up.  He continued that he had worked with several
employees who were both supervisors and non-supervisors and, by garnering their input and suggestions, determined
what type of evaluation form would be the most appropriate.  He explained that one of the singular features of the
evaluation form was that it required the supervisor to identify the different factors by using only three choices: met
expectations, did not meet expectations, exceeded expectations.  He further explained that this evaluation form was
different from other forms since it helped reduce the comparison of an employee against “some notion of what a perfect
employee is” by turning the focus onto whether or not the employee was meeting or exceeding expectations.  He stated
that other counties and cities that use this type of evaluation form have discovered that only 20-30% of their employees
exceeded expectations, that it was generally those employees who were eligible for pay for performance increases to
their salary, and that those evaluations had to be effectively demonstrated, documented, and substantiated.  He
concluded that the evaluation form would work to motivate employees by informing them of ways to exceed expectations,
and that training supervisors helped since it made everyone aware of the “rules of the game” and mitigated against
supervisors doing evaluations based off of ‘their own life experiences”.


Discussion followed regarding the training of supervisors  who would be responsible to determine what employees would
be eligible for pay for performance, the amount of money to budget for pay for performance, the safeguards built into
the evaluation form that mitigates against the “teacher’s pet problem”, if pay for performance should be a temporary
increase to an employee’s salary versus a career long raise to the employee’s salary, how to determine if an employee’s
contribution was a one-time benefit to the County versus a career long benefit, the historical practices that Fayette
County has taken in the past regarding these issues, and how the new evaluation system would replace the older
system.


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve the revised Employee Performance Appraisal Document, as prepared and
presented by the University of Georgia, for the purpose of evaluating County employees.  Commissioner Pfeifer
seconded the motion.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
September 3, 2008
Page 4


Commissioner Maxwell asked what the next step was in this process and was informed by Mr. Krakeel that the next step
was to train all of the supervisors and managers.  Commissioner Maxwell replied that the training would take care of the
evaluation form, but wanted to know what the next step was in the process.  Mr. Krakeel answered that he would return
at a later date with a recommendation on funding the performance appraisal system and other criteria.


Commissioner Maxwell stated  the pressure would be on supervisors to have a large evaluation score for those
employees  the supervisor wanted to advance and to be in the running for pay for performance.  Next, he asked how
a comparison would be done between an employee in Parks and Recreation with a staff of five or six people versus an
employee in the Sheriff’s Department with a staff of 250 people.  Mr. Krakeel replied that the employee would be
competing against his or her job description and the level of performance they are expected to meet.  Mr. Wrighton
concurred with Mr. Krakeel’s answer, and suggested that after the pay for performance budget is established by the
Board it  should be divided between the departments based on the percentage of the County’s aggregate payroll used
by each department.  He said that by making that type of division, it would prevent larger departments from “sucking the
money from all of the other departments”.  Commissioner Maxwell agreed with Mr. Wrighton, and also expressed
concern with a “lifetime benefit” given to employees for one good year’s worth of service.  He concluded that he would
prefer to give a one-time check each year, but added that he was open to recommendations.  


Further discussion continued about COLAs and how an employee advances in his or her paygrade.  Chairman Smith
said the conversation had moved past the motion on the table and called the question.


The motion to approve the revised Employee Performance Appraisal Document, as prepared and presented by the
University of Georgia, for the purpose of evaluating County employees passed with a unanimous vote.  A copy of the
request and the Fayette County, Georgia Employee Performance Appraisal, identified as “Attachment 4", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.


C. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance regarding the creation
of a new zoning district which would permit a broad variety of uses or would augment the allowed uses
with the M-1 zoning district, as requested by Mr. Richard Norman of Artisan Properties, Inc. (Storage
Xxtra on State Route  85 North).


Community Development Director Pete Frisina introduced Mr. Richard Norman to the Board and said that both he and
Mr. Norman had come to the Board seeking either permission or guidance, and then turned the discussion over to Mr.
Norman.


Mr. Norman said he has a dilemma where the product that he offers does not fall comfortably within any zoning category,
and explained that ten years ago, he started a self-storage company that has evolved into more of a business center
with a large number of tenants, office complexes, self-storage buildings, and even a small conference room.  He stated
that in February 2007, the Board of Commissioners “generously consented” to amend some of the allowed uses under
the M-1 zoning category and that their consent had been very helpful to him, but since that time a number of other uses
have arisen that he also wanted to have permitted under M-1 zoning.  He summarized that he was requesting a series
of specific uses to be added to the M-1 zoning districts, reminded the Board that the uses he was requesting were
detailed in the letter he provided them earlier, and mentioned that the bulk of the uses he was requesting was for
professional type services.  







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
September 3, 2008
Page 5


Mr. Frisina resumed the conversation by reminding the Board that the County had been through this type of exercise
with M-1 zoning a number of times in the past, and gave a brief history of past efforts and studies undertaken by the
Board of Commissioners in relation to M-1 zoning.  He stated that after looking at Mr. Norman’s request, he noticed  Mr.
Norman did not desire the type of businesses that are “heavily used” in M-1 zoning and he did not want the retail uses
found in commercial zoning, but did desire businesses that are service oriented, and that he desired to have a mixture
of professional services.  He explained that in short, Mr. Norman wanted to “cherry-pick” uses from Fayette County’s
three main nonresidential zoning categories and essentially wanted to create something that was a combination of all
those categories.  Mr. Frisina stated that the problem is that Fayette County does not have a mechanism in place to allow
for situations that Mr. Norman presents since the County’s zoning is very specific and the permitted uses are also
separated uses.  As a result, he said staff would like to explore what options are available and  to explore creating either
a new zoning district or something that allows for some flexibility as opposed to “just trying to fit a square peg into a
square hole”.  He recalled that a few years ago Fayette County had a Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning category
that allowed for a mixture of nonresidential uses, but it was “deleted” from the zoning ordinance around 1998 when
Fayette County enacted a “wholesale kind of amendment of the zoning ordinance”.  He suggested that what was once
deleted would now have to be readdressed. He added that a PUD is a zoning classification that allows a developer to
set standards for a development before bringing those standards to the County for the County’s evaluation to determine
if those standards met the County’s expectations.


Commissioner Maxwell asked if Mr. Frisina was suggesting an increase to the number of uses in M-1 zoning or if his
suggestion was to write a new ordinance to create a new zoning category.  Mr. Frisina answered that he did not think
that any one zoning category could address everything Mr. Norman was looking for, but reiterated that he would like to
explore options in order to see if there is some way the County could create something that allows a business person
or developer to create a mixture of uses within nonresidential zoning.  Chairman Smith asked Mr. Frisina if he was
thinking of a new zoning category, and Mr. Frisina replied that he was interested in reviewing the old PUD zoning for
mixed-use businesses and wanted to see if they could be resurrected in order to meet these types of issues.  


Commissioner Frady asked if nonresidential PUDs were similar in nature to residential PUDs, and Mr. Frisina replied
that while they are similar there are exceptions.  He said with a residential PUD, developers are allowed to set standards
for different types of lot sizes and setbacks and the County would determine whether or not those standards are
acceptable, but with a nonresidential PUD, the developers are also allowed to set their own standards and to supply to
the County the types of uses they desire in the PUD district for the County’s evaluation and approval.  


Further discussion occurred in regard to the nature and safety concerns of nonresidential PUDs.  Mr. Norman interjected
that while he was open to the concept of a PUD, his original request was to allow some uses to be either directly or
conditionally permitted in the M-1 category, and he thought that could be done rather quickly.


Chairman Smith said the problem he had with the request was with the safety issues that are inherent with businesses
located in an M-1 zoning district, and that he was not comfortable with having forklifts and trucks in the same proximity
where children may be present.  He added that it was unfortunate the Board could not authorize an exception for this
particular piece of property while it excluded all other properties located in M-1 zoning.  He sympathized with Mr. Norman
but said this was a safety issue, and he did not see any other way around the problem without developing some type
of different zoning category for this type of unique use.  Mr. Norman agreed that safety was an issue but added  the types
of businesses he wanted were professional services such as building contractors, engineering firms, insurance
businesses, and real estate brokerages.  Chairman Smith responded that while he did not object to those uses, he did
object to permitting blanket professional services uses in an M-1 zoning since part of professional services includes child
psychologists with the result that children and their safety are brought back into the equation.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
September 3, 2008
Page 6


Commissioners Frady and Horgan also were concerned that by creating a new zoning category or enacting
nonresidential PUDs, Fayette County would take tenants away from people who constructed their buildings in properly
zoned areas.


Chairman Smith said it was obvious that there were some problems with the issue and suggested that the Board allow
Mr. Frisina to research two possible alternatives.  He suggested the first alternative would be a long, drawn-out process
of trying to design a new zoning district, and that the second alternative would be for Mr. Frisina to pick a few selected
uses in order to review and determine if Fayette County should expand the allowable uses that are listed in the M-1
designation.  Commissioner Peter Pfeifer added he would like to see some examples of nonresidential PUDs, and
Commissioner Maxwell added that he wanted to have a report on this topic provided within three months.


The Board directed Community Development Director Pete Frisina to research two potential alternatives to the proposed
amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance.  The first alternative that the Board directed Mr. Frisina to
research was the possibility of creating a new zoning district.  The second alternative was to research some of the
selected uses, as listed in the documentation provided with this request, in order to determine if there should be an
expansion of the permitted uses in an M-1 zoning district.  The Board further directed Mr. Frisina to return within three
months to discuss his research.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS


D. Approval of the Finance Department’s recommendation that the County’s Vehicle Replacement Policy
be amended to include an approved color scheme for various types of vehicles, heavy equipment and
other assets.


Assistant Finance Director Toni Jo Howard informed the Board that during a Vehicle Replacement Committee meeting,
a problem arose when some departments requested vehicles with colors that are not typically associated with those
departments, so a decision was made to recommend an amendment to the Vehicle Replacement Policy by inserting
language that states certain departments have certain vehicle colors associated with those departments.


Commissioner Frady asked if a color scheme was available stating what colors are allowed.  Ms. Howard replied that
the color scheme was included in the amended Vehicle Replacement Policy that was presented before the Board for
this request, and explained that while the Sheriff’s Department had the liberty to determine their own colors, the
Marshal’s Department would have black vehicles, Fire and Emergency Services would have either red or red and white
vehicles, the County fleet vehicles would be white, and the Constable would have a beige or similarly colored vehicle.


Commissioner Pfeifer moved to approve the Finance Department’s recommendation that the County’s Vehicle
Replacement Policy be amended to include an approved color scheme for various types of vehicles, heavy equipment
and other assets.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  Chairman Smith asked for the phrase “as set out in the
memorandum provided” to be included in the motion, and both Commissioners Pfeifer and Horgan agreed to the request.
No other discussion followed.


The motion to approve the Finance Department’s recommendation that the County’s Vehicle Replacement Policy be
amended to include an approved color scheme, as set out in the memorandum provided, for various types of vehicles,
heavy equipment and other assets passed with a unanimous vote.  A copy of the request and amended Fayette County
Policy: Replacement of Vehicles, Heavy Equipment, and Other Assets, identified as “Attachment 6", follow  these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
September 3, 2008
Page 7


E. Consideration of Fire and Emergency Services’ recommendation that the proposed Comprehensive
Water Mitigation, Preparedness, Response and Recovery Plan be adopted.


Interim Public Safety Director Allen McCullough reported that last year, at the direction of Interim County Administrator
Jack Krakeel, Public Safety was asked to coordinate a countywide effort that included the municipalities and the private
sector in order to address a “worse-case scenario” caused by drought.  Before he turned the discussion over to Captain
Pete Nelms he said there had been several meetings and reviews involved in this effort, and now he was bringing the
plan to the Board for its review and consideration.  


Captain Pete Nelms continued the discussion by saying the plan was a result that came from the Drought Committee
that Mr. Krakeel established last summer and then he briefly spoke about some of the highlights of the plan.  He said
it was important to know that the plan parallels the County’s Local Emergency Operations Plan, and that it also identifies
the processes and benchmarks needed for declaring a state of emergency.  He added that the plan also identifies
distribution locations for potable water distribution, and that it also identifies alternative water sources needed for
firefighting techniques, fire protection, and other needs.  He mentioned that the plan worked in conjunction with both the
Public Health and the Environmental Health Departments in order to ensure that Fayette County has a safe and potable
water supply.  He concluded his presentation saying Water System Director Tony Parrott, Interim Public Safety Director
Allen McCullough, and the City of Fayetteville’s Public Works Director Rick Easton were in agreement with the plan.


Commissioner Frady moved to adopt the Comprehensive Water Mitigation, Preparedness, Response and Recovery Plan
as recommended by Fire and Emergency Services.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and the Comprehensive Water Mitigation,
Preparedness, Response and Recovery Plan, identified as “Attachment 7", follow these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.


F. Approval of Fire and Emergency Services’ request to apply for a grant from the Federal Emergency
Management Agency in the amount of $30,000 for the purpose of updating the County’s Pre-Disaster
Mitigation Plan.


Interim Public Safety Director Allen McCullough reported that, in 2005, Fayette County had prepared its Current Risk
Assessment, as required by a Federal mandate, and added that if the mandate had not been met then the County would
not be eligible to apply for any grants.  He discussed some of the grants Fayette County had been awarded in the past
couple of years.  He continued that in 2005, Fayette County was awarded approximately $30,000 in order to retain a
consultant who would prepare its Current Risk Assessment, but added that it was thought that Fire and Emergency
Services enough competent staff to complete the assignment.  He mentioned that a consultant would have cost
approximately $100,000, but the County was able to complete its own project, and that the project was approved on its
first round of reviews.  Based on that background, he asked for the Board’s permission to apply for the grant as
requested, to allow staff to complete the project internally, and to allow the money to be used for other purposes related
to Emergency Management.


Chairman Smith asked if the grant was a matching grant and was informed by Captain Pete Nelms that while the grant
was indeed a matching grant the money could be used for any kind of service such as labor.  Commissioner Maxwell
asked if there was a reason why the Board should not give the permission as requested, and Chief McCullough replied
that while he could not think of a reason permission would be denied, he was still required to get permission from the
Board.  Commissioner Maxwell asked if the County was stepping on a landmine with this request, and Chief McCullough
answered that he had not found a landmine.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
September 3, 2008
Page 8


Commissioner Frady moved to approve Fire and Emergency Services’ request to apply for a grant from the Federal
Emergency Management Agency in the amount of $30,000 for the purpose of updating the County’s Pre-Disaster
Mitigation Plan.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT


Refinancing of Water System Bonds: Interim County Administrator began his report by reminding the Board that
Fayette County has been engaged in reviewing the possibility of refinancing its Water System Revenue Bonds as well
as a new bond that is associated with the construction of Lake McIntosh.  Mr. Krakeel further reminded the Board that
several months ago he informed them that more time was needed for review and that the bond market had deteriorated
to the point where the net present value savings were not sufficient enough to move forward with an issuance of bonds.
He continued saying that in the past 30 days, the bond market has changed considerably, and explained that, if the
Board desired to proceed with the refinancing of its Water System bonds and its new debt requirements for Lake
McIntosh, Fayette County’s net present value savings would be, net of the issuance costs, approximately $1.1 to $1.4
million.  He stated that, based on this information, he had directed the County Engineer to prepare the necessary
engineering work that is required for any consideration regarding the refinancing of the County’s existing debt.  He
mentioned that Merchant Capital had provided a time frame to the Commissioners on this issue, but before refinancing
of the bonds could occur, the County was required, per the previously issued bonds, to have the Water System’s
revenues audited.  He said that Fayette County has received a quote of approximately $5,000 to $7,000 from its current
auditor, Cherry, Bekaert, and Holland, L.L.P., in order to conduct an audit of the Water System’s revenues.  He
summarized that he was bringing this issue to the Board to see if it had any interest in moving forward with the
refinancing of the Water System Revenue Bonds and the issuance of a new bond for the construction and financing of
costs associated with the construction of Lake McIntosh.


Chairman Smith asked if he understood correctly that there is a certain amount of work that Merchant Capital would have
to accomplish in order to get the Board to the point where it could make a decision on whether or not to refinance, and
Mr. Krakeel replied that the Chairman was correct in his understanding.  Chairman Smith asked if there would by any
out of pocket expense to Fayette County, and Mr. Krakeel answered that the only out of pocket expense would be the
$5,000 to $7,000 needed for auditing the Water Systems revenues.


Chairman Smith asked how long the audit was good for with respect to the issuance of bonds.  Assistant Finance
Director Toni Jo Howard replied that, if the audit took place now, it would be good until the end of December and if the
Board wanted to refinance the bonds prior to December it would have to spend the $5,000 to $7,000 for the audit as
discussed.  She added, however, that if the Board decided not to refinance until after December, then the County’s
annual audit that will be completed and available at the end of December could be used in lieu of the audit under
discussion.  Chairman Smith reiterated Ms. Howard’s answer and added that if the County waited until six months into
the next year to make a decision about refinancing, it would be faced with spending $5,000 to $7,000 again.


The consensus of the Board was to authorize Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel to engage the County’s current
auditor, Cherry, Bekaert, and Holland, L.L.P., to conduct an audit of the Water System’s revenues at a cost of
approximately $5,000 to $7,000, and to authorize Merchant Capital to evaluate existing conditions that may indicate
Fayette County’s ability to realize a significant savings by refinancing the Water System’s Revenue Bonds. 


ATTORNEY’S REPORT


There was no Attorney’s Report.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
September 3, 2008
Page 9


STAFF REPORTS


McIntosh Trail Scenic Byway Project: Executive Assistant Carol Chandler informed the Board that the Georgia
Department of Transportation has a program called “Scenic Byways” that allows for certain roads throughout Georgia
to be designated as scenic or special.  She told the Commissioners that, in light of that information, there was an effort
to have a scenic byway, named the “McIntosh Trail Scenic Byway’ established and  that it would have its genesis at
Indian Springs State Park in Butts County, would traverse through five counties, and would terminate at the McIntosh
Reserve in Carroll County where Chief McIntosh is buried.  She continued saying that this scenic byway has been slated
to enter Fayette County at McIntosh Road, would travel through Brooks to State Route 85 Connector at Starr’s Mill, and
turn south onto State Route 85 where it would then exit the county.  She explained that it was hoped that, by having a
scenic byway, historical sites would be identified and emphasized and communities would generate revenue from its
tourism and retail sales.  She told the Board that the process required in order to have a road declared a scenic bypass
was “arduous and cumbersome” since it involves public hearings, talking to people who live along the roadway, engaging
local governments, and submitting a Corridor Management Plan that addresses the impact such a designation would
have on traffic, but she added that the McIntosh Trail Historic Preservation Society, who has begun this initiative, has
begun to take the steps needed for this designation.  She concluded by saying that she was bringing this issue to the
Board’s attention, and that if the Board should desire to support this effort, she had a canned resolution that was
provided by the Society for their consideration as well.  


Chairman Smith asked if this effort would preclude Fayette County from doing any kind of significant improvement to
the road.  Commissioner Frady replied that he thought it meant only signage was required, but Chairman Smith added
that there had to be at least some restrictions involved.


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel mentioned that the former State Aid programs were being converted to State
Grant programs that could be used for road assistance projects, and he explained that under the State Grant program
a county able to select up to seven projects for funding consideration.  He then asked this initiative would be considered
one of the seven projects and if that would limit Fayette County’s ability to obtain additional grant funding for those
projects that the County would have that required actual road construction work.  Chairman Smith replied that he did not
believe there was any money going to the project, and Ms. Chandler added that this project was not being called a grant.
She clarified that this project was being called a designation, and that meant, if the Department of Transportation
awarded this initiative, it would place the appropriate signage. 


The Board directed Ms. Chandler to obtain clarification regarding what the impact would be of having McIntosh Trail
designated a scenic byway, and to determine if such a designation would impact road funds, the County’s ability to
control, improve or expand the roadways, and to gain more information in general.


Inquiry from Peachtree City concerning a Sewer Easement: Community Development Director Pete Frisina said he
was contacted by Peachtree City’s Engineer, approximately two weeks ago, who asked for his input on a proposed plan
to install a pump station, force main and gravity sewer in the area around State Route 74 and Redwine Road.  He told
the Board that it was the first time he had heard of this issue, and that he informed the Engineer that he would not have
a chance to respond to the inquiry until after he met with the Board.  Using a map, he showed the Board the plans that
Peachtree City was proposing, and said that  he understood Fayette County’s policy required that, if a sewer was to run
through unincorporated Fayette County, the Board of Commissioners would have to give its permission first.  He added
that it was his understanding that the property owners in the area, as well as Peachtree City Water and Sewer Authority,
were willing to pay for the installation of the sewer in this area.  Next, Mr. Frisina reminded the Board that approximately
eight years ago this area had 21 acres zoned for commercial use and another 5 acres zoned O-I, and that this area was
still undeveloped.  He mentioned that Peachtree City has stated that there is a law that reads that all properties within







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
September 3, 2008
Page 10


200 feet of a sewer are required to “hook into” that sewer “when such a system is available”.  He said that he has asked
opinions of what it means when it uses the word “available”, and that he has received a different answer from every
person he has asked.  He reiterated that this was the first time he had heard of the issue and it was the first time he had
been able to bring this issue to the Board of Commissioners.  In conclusion, he mentioned that the Peachtree City
Council had recently tabled this item since it was hoping to get easements in order to install the sewer line approximately
200 feet from the County’s border.


A lengthy discussion followed regarding Peachtree City’s possible intentions, the possible results that could occur should
Peachtree City proceed with their plans, and the possible responses Fayette County could take in regard to this initiative
by Peachtree City.


The Board directed Community Development Director Pete Frisina to convey to Peachtree City’s Engineer that Fayette
County does not have a fundamental objection to Peachtree City installing a proposed pump station, force main, and
gravity sewer at Meade Field within 200 feet of Fayette County’s border, as long as such installation does not alter the
density of the development that is designated for the area in general, or the property of Meade Field in particular, and
that the buffers and berms that were agreed to during the original rezoning process are maintained.


Notification and Public Information Regarding Phase II of the West Fayetteville Bypass: Director of Public Works
Phil Mallon informed the Board that a notice had been mailed to all of the property owners who would be directly
impacted by Phase II of the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He added that the notice included a color rendering of the
properties as they relate to the West Fayetteville Bypass and a list of frequently asked questions.  Mr. Mallon also
informed the Board that a Public Information Meeting was being scheduled for Tuesday, September 16, 2008  from  3:00
to 7:00 p.m. in the Commissioners’ Chambers.  He said the meeting would involve an informal walk around various
information tables, and that about four or five people would be available to answer any questions.


Street Resurfacing Agreement between Fayette County and the Town of Tyrone: Director of Public Works Phil
Mallon reminded the Board that in July 2006 Fayette County had entered into a Street Resurfacing Agreement with the
Town of Tyrone in order to resurface two roads, and, in October 2007 the agreement was amended to include Senoia
Road.  He reported that the Town of Tyrone has asked for another amendment to the agreement in order for both
Queens Court and Rollingbrook Trail to be resurfaced, and said that the Town of Tyrone would reimburse Fayette County
for any material from their LARP funds.  Mr. Mallon explained that both of these roads are slated to be milled and
patched under the contract currently in place with C.W. Matthews, and that he was bringing the issue to the Board at
this time so that the pavers could be “sent in to resurface those roads”.


Commissioner Frady moved to amend the Street Resurfacing Agreement with the Town of Tyrone by adding Queens
Court and Rollingbrook Trail, and to be reimbursed, per the language in the Street Resurfacing Agreement, by the Town
of Tyrone.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.
A copy of the updated Street Resurfacing Agreement, July 5, 2006 Addendum(s) to Special Stimulations (pg. 6),
identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof. 


Direction on the Paving of Snead Road: Director of Public Works Phil Mallon reminded the Board that the County is
preparing to pave Snead Road, but about three weeks ago it was suggested to him that Snead Road could be paved
with a 50' right-of-way with a 5' permanent easement along both sides of the road instead of the traditional 60' right-of-
way.  He said he thought about that suggestion and checked with the Department of Transportation, but could not think
of any drawback to the suggestion.  He added that there were several benefits that came with the suggestion, and that
the first benefit was that by following the suggestion the County would reduce the amount of money it would need to pay
to acquire the right-of-way from those property owners chose not to donate their right-of-way.  He said the second benefit







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
September 3, 2008
Page 11


the County could experience was also a reduction in cost since the County could save approximately $40,000 due to
relocating some of the expensive and elaborate fences that are constructed “on top of the 60' right-of-way line”.  He
added that a third benefit to the suggestion is that the County could have additional flexibility that would enable it to save
some of the trees and landscaping along the road.  He then concluded by asking the Board if it would consider allowing
Snead Road to be paved with a 50' right-of-way with a 5' permanent easement along either side of the road.


Chairman Smith asked if this was a policy change that the Board ought to entertain.  Mr. Mallon replied that he thought
that the Board ought to consider a policy change, and pointed out that the Comprehensive Transportation Plan that was
adopted through the Consent Agenda would involve a review of the County’s “road processions and requirements”, and
that recommendations would be forthcoming with that plan.  He thought that before the County made official, permanent
policies, this suggestion should be considered and incorporated into the process.  Additional discussion followed.


The Board directed Mr. Mallon to proceed with the paving of Snead Road by utilizing a 50' right-of-way with a 5'
permanent easement along both sides of the road as discussed.  


BOARD REPORTS


Letter to Atlanta Christian College: Chairman Smith stated that Peachtree City was asking the Commissioners for
letters of support favoring the location of Atlanta Christian College in Peachtree City, and asked if the Commissioners
wanted to send individual letters or if they preferred to have a letter written on behalf of the Board and signed by the
Chairman.  Commissioner Maxwell was concerned about Peachtree City’s request since he did not have a clear
understanding of what the people of Peachtree City wanted and since he had heard some grumbling among the people.
He said he also had some reservations since he was not sure if the Peachtree City Council was unanimous in its support
of Atlanta Christian College’s consideration to relocate into the city.  After some discussion, Commissioner Maxwell said
that if anyone did not know of “anything bad” with the request, then he was fine with a letter being written on behalf of
the Board and signed by the Chairman.


The consensus of the Board was to write a letter supporting the location of Atlanta Christian College in Peachtree City,
and to authorize the Chairman to sign the letter on behalf of the Board of Commissioners.  A copy of the letter to Atlanta
Christian College, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof. 


EXECUTIVE SESSION


There was no Executive Session.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
September 3, 2008
Page 12


ADJOURNMENT


Commissioner Frady moved to adjourn the September 3, 2008 Workshop Meeting.  Commissioner Horgan seconded
the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The September 3, 2008 Workshop Meeting was adjourned at 6:35 p.m.


______________________________                                ______________________________________
    Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk                     Jack Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 25th day of September 2008.


______________________________
    Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








Minutes
Board of Commissioners


  September 11, 2008
    7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, September 11, 2008,
at 7:00 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


______________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the meeting to order.  


Commissioner Pfeifer offered the Invocation.


Moment of Silence in recognition of those people who  gave  their  lives  and  sacrificed  all for this Country on
September 11, 2001.


Pledge of Allegiance.


Recognition of the members of Boy Scout Troop #74 and their Scout Leader Tom Nolan.


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA:
Commissioner Horgan made a motion to accept the agenda as presented and Commissioner Frady seconded the
motion. The motion carried 5-0. 


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:
PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING NATIONAL CONSTITUTION WEEK:
A. Proclamation recognizing September 17-23 as National Constitution Week.  


Chairman Smith read and the Board presented a Proclamation to several members of the James Waldrop Chapter of
the Daughters of the American Revolution recognizing the week of September 17-23 as National Constitution Week.
A copy of the Proclamation, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes


September 11, 2008


Page 2


RECOGNITION OF NEW BATTALION COMMANDERS:
B. Recognition of new Battalion Commanders, Jeffrey Hill, M. Steven MacFall, and Douglas Morris.  


The Board of Commissioners and Interim Public Safety Director Allen McCullough officially recognized Jeffrey Hill, Mark
MacFall and Douglas Morris as the new Battalion Commanders with the Department of Fire and Emergency Services.


Interim Public Safety Director Allen McCullough thanked the Board of Commissioners and Interim County Administrator
Jack Krakeel for approving this request in the recent budget process.  He said the position for the Battalion Commanders
had been a requested position within the Department for over a decade.  He said Fayette County Fire and Emergency
Services was one of the only fire departments in the Atlanta metropolitan area that has not had this key operational
position and staff was very thankful that this was now in place.  He said each of these gentlemen would be over a platoon
of nine stations consisting of 46 men and women who were firefighter/EMT’s and other officers and would coordinate
the fire response, emergency medical emergency response and all emergencies that occur in this community.  He said
this would now help Fayette County to become much more compliant with the National Incident Management System.


Chairman Smith administered the Loyalty Oath to each new Battalion Commander.  He said this County was indebted
to these individuals for the acts that they commit and the acts that they will commit on behalf of the citizens of Fayette
County and it was truly an honor to have them rise to the rank of Battalion Commander.  He said this was attributed to
their ability to recognize and forge ahead even in the face of danger.  He congratulated them and said Fayette County
was very proud and fortunate to have them as new Battalion Commanders.  


PUBLIC COMMENT:
None.


CONSENT AGENDA: Chairman Smith requested item #7 be withdrawn for discussion.  Commissioner Pfeifer made a
motion to approve the consent agenda items 1-6 as presented and Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The
motion carried 5-0.  


SHERIFF’S OFFICE:
1. Authorization to amend Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office Criminal Investigation


Division to recognize funds paid to the County from various federal programs for personnel assigned to work
investigations in cooperation with these agencies in the amounts of $1,625.69 and $6,612.15 for FY’09. A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S OFFICE:
2. Approval of request from the Sheriff’s Department to authorize the Chairman to execute tag/title documents for


the purchase of a vehicle using federal funds.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof. 


WATER SYSTEM - BID #674 AWARDED FOR WATER TREATMENT:
3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Chemical Bid #674 to seven companies that were low bidders on


items used by the Fayette County Water System for water treatment; General Chemical Performance Products,
Inc., DPC, Inc., Industrial Chemicals, Southern Lime Company, Chemrite, Inc., Pristine Water Solutions, Inc.,
and Cedar Chem LLC.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No.4", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.  







Minutes      


September 11, 2008


Page 3


WATER COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION TO INSERT PLANNING & ZONING NOTICE IN WATER BILLS:
4. Approval of Water Committee’s recommendation that the Planning & Zoning Department be allowed to insert


a notice into water bills concerning a recent change in the County’s zoning ordinance regarding installation of
fences and walls.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 5", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.  


PUBLIC SAFETY - CHECK RECEIVED REGARDING PANDEMIC FLU EXERCISE:
5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to accept a check in the amount of $3,000 from the Georgia Department


of Human Resources resulting from Fayette County’s participation in a Pandemic Flu exercise held on August
6, 2008.  A copy of the request, identified as :”Attachment No. 6", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.  


PUBLIC SAFETY - AGREEMENT WITH DISTRICT FOUR PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES FOR EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS PANDEMIC INFLUENZA PLANNING PROGRAM:  
6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an agreement with the District Four Public Health Services for


the development of an Emergency Preparedness Pandemic Influenza Planning Program and to accept a check
in the amount of $10,000 to be used for this purpose.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 7",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


MINUTES:
7. Approval of minutes for the Board of Commissioners’ meeting held on August 28, 2008.  


Chairman Smith remarked that he would not be voting on this item because he was not present at the August 28th


Commission meeting.    


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve consent agenda item no. 7 as presented and Commissioner Pfeifer
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0-1 with Chairman Smith abstaining from the motion.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
None.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT:
None.


STAFF REPORTS:  County Fire Marshal David Scarbrough briefly discussed a community based request regarding a
proposed zip code change for a portion of Fayette County. Captain Scarbrough  said the areas in question were Fairburn
with a zip code of 30213 and Riverdale with a zip code of 30296.  He presented the Board with a map showing the
proposed zip code change area.  A copy of the map, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.  He said there had been ongoing conversations with the United States Postal Service and he
would be bringing a formal request to the Board next month.  He said this zip code change would involve the renaming
of ten (10) streets in the area involved.  He said USPS had indicated that they would like to have at some future date
a letter of commitment from the County regarding this as it relates to the renaming of these streets. 


Chairman Smith asked Captain Scarbrough if he knew the streets that would have to be renamed.  


Captain Scarbrough replied yes and said there were ten streets in this particular area that have been identified that would
be a part of this.







Minutes      


September 11, 2008


Page 4


Chairman Smith asked if this request had been generated by citizens in the area.  


Captain Scarbrough remarked that was correct and noted that a couple of different homeowners’ associations located
in the North Fayette community petitioned and had written letters to the USPS.  He said the County was then contacted
and made aware of the situation.     He noted that the USPS would be doing a survey of the residents in the affected area
as to how they would feel about the zip code change and would affect approximately 2,200 residents.  He said if the
survey resulted in a 51% majority then the USPS would be willing to proceed with the process.  


Chairman Smith said it was his understanding that there had been some concern about addresses with other city zip
codes.  He recalled that there had been a group of citizens who had tried to accomplish this approximately ten years ago
and at that time the USPS was not that cooperative in making the change.  He asked if the USPS at this time seemed
to be willing to make this change.


Captain Scarbrough replied that the information he had indicated that they had undertaken an internal study and had
indicated that they would in all likelihood make the change provided the citizens in the affected area were in agreement.
He said they would then become a part of the 30214 Fayetteville zip code area.  


Commissioner Horgan clarified that in the current zip code 30214 there were ten street names that were also listed in
the zip code 30213 and this was the reason for changing the ten street names and Captain Scarbrough replied yes that
was correct.  


Chairman Smith asked if the USPS was bearing the responsibility for doing the survey and getting the survey results.


Captain Scarbrough replied yes this was part of the USPS process.  He said they would send a formal survey letter to
the residents located in the affected area.  He said to his knowledge there would not be any cost at this point that the
County would bear toward the survey.


Chairman Smith asked Captain Scarbrough if there was any action needed by the Board tonight.


Captain Scarbrough replied there was no action needed tonight and he just wanted to make the Board aware of this
ongoing process.  He said at a future date he would request to go on an agenda.  


Commissioner Maxwell asked Captain Scarbrough if he had a time line for when he would come back to the Board and
Captain Scarbrough replied next month.  


BOARD REPORTS:
None.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel requested an Executive Session to discuss one item
of real estate acquisition.


Commissioner Frady made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss one item of real estate acquisition and
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


After a brief discussion, Commissioner Frady made a motion to adjourn the Executive Session and to return back to the
open session and Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.







Minutes      


September 11, 2008


Page 5


Chairman Smith called the meeting back to order for open session. 


REAL ESTATE ACQUISITION: Chairman Smith remarked that the Board had discussed one item of real estate
acquisition and no action was taken.  


EXECUTIVE SESSION AFFIDAVIT:  Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the
Executive Session affidavit affirming that one item of real estate acquisition was discussed in Executive Session and
Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Affidavit, identified as “Attachment
No. 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


ADJOURNMENT:
Commissioner Frady made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:15 p.m. and Commissioner Horgan seconded the
motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


_________________________________  ___________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 25  day of September, 2008.th


___________________________________


Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








The AgendaThe AgendaThe AgendaThe Agenda
Board of Commissioners
September 25, 2008


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


A. Proclamation recognizing October 8, 2008 as Honor Flight Fayette Day in
Fayette County.


PUBLIC HEARING:


B. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Development
Regulations regarding Article V. Buffer and Landscape Requirements, as
presented by the Engineering Department.  This item was last discussed
during the August 14, 2008.  THE PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMENDED APPROVAL WITH ONE (1) CHANGE 5-0.


C. Consideration of the annual update of the Capital Improvement Element
(CIE) and the Short Term Work Program (STWP) for the imposition of
Impact Fees for Fire Services and authorization of transmittal to the Atlanta
Regional Commissioner (ARC) as presented by the Planning and Zoning
Department.


D. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning
Ordinance regarding Article VII. Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and
Modifications, Section 7-1. Conditional Use Approval, B. Conditional Uses
Allowed, 23. Home Occupation as presented by the Planning and Zoning
Department.  STAFF HAS REQUESTED THIS ITEM BE CONTINUED
UNTIL OCTOBER 23 FOR PUBLIC HEARING.   


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of request by the Sheriff’s Department Field Operations to replace
a 2006 Ford Crown Victoria which was completely destroyed in an
automobile accident on July 3, 2008, using an $8,699.30 insurance
reimbursement and $18,651.70 from the Vehicle Replacement Fund to
purchase the replacement vehicle.


2. Approval of staff’s request for permission to apply for an Emergency
Management Performance Grant (EMPG) for Severe Weather Warning
Projects.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month at 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: (770) 305-5200
Fax: (770) 305-5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
September 25, 2008
Page Number 2


3. Approval of request from 911 Communications to be allowed to dispose of old department uniforms that are
no longer serviceable.


4. Approval of staff’s request to accept a reimbursement in the amount of $976.49 from Perfect Cut Services, Inc.,
which would increase Parks and Recreation Ground Supplies Revenue Budget Account by $976.49.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #676 for Pressure Reducing Values to the sole bidder, PMC
Enterprises, in the amount of $41,010.


6. Approval of the September 3, 2008 Board of Commissioners’ Workshop Minutes and the September 11, 2008
Board of Commissioners’ Regular Session Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


E.           Consideration of staff’s recommendation that Sumner Road be designated as an authorized street for motorized
            cart usage.         


NEW BUSINESS:


F.        Approval of staff’s recommendation for supplemental budget adjustments for the fiscal year ending June 30,   
           2008.


G.       Consideration of the proposed annexation from the City of Fayetteville to annex 17.85 acres, Piedmont Fayette
            Hospital, Applicant, to develop additional parking and Day Care Facility.  This property is located in Land Lot 129
          of the 5th District and Land Lot 9 of the 7th District, and fronts on Sandy Creek Road.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORTS
BOARD REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION


ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


911 Communications Cheryl Rogers


Cheryl Rogers Thursday, September 25, 2008


Approval of request from 911 Communications to be allowed to dispose of old department uniforms that are no longer serviceable.


The Fayette County E 9-1-1 Communications Center has accumulated several old, worn faded and torn uniforms from its employees. 


The uniforms, purchased with funds from the E 9-1-1 Communications Center Operations budget have the E 9-1-1 logo and cannot 


be used for any other purposes.  Storage of these uniforms is not an option.


Approval to dispose of these old uniforms.  Replacement uniforms have already been purchased.


No


No


Yes Thursday, September 25, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes









		911 Communications- Uniform Destruction Agenda Request File.pdf

		911 Communications- Uniform Destruction Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Commissioners Carol Chandler


Carol Chandler September 25, 2008


Proclamation recognizing October 8, 2008 as Honor Flight Fayette Day in Fayette County.


Gail Sparrow, President of the Honor Flight Fayette, has asked to be placed on the 9/25 Agenda.  She wants to publicly thank the 


emergency personnel from Fayette County for their participation in the May 14th trip.  She would like to invite the public to show 


their appreciation to our Veterans by seeing the World War II Veterans off on their Honor Flight trip on the morning of October 8th.  


Present Proclamation


Yes April 24, 2008


No


Yes September 25, 2008


No


Yes


Yes Yes









		Commissioners- Honor Flight Fayette Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Honor Flight Fayette Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Engineering/Public Works Phil Mallon


Nancy Howard Thursday, September 25, 2008


Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Development Regulations regarding Article V. Buffer and Landscape 


Requirements, as presented by the Engineering Department.


The suggested planting materials in Sections 8-157 and 8-161 of the Development Regulations lists several plant species that are 


not appropriate for Fayette County's climate zone and/or are very susceptible to disease.  In addition, some of the plants are 


considered invasive and pose a threat to the natural areas of Georgia.  The revised planting lists will omit the undesirable plant 


species and includes only those plants suited to the climate of Fayette County, are known to be disease-resistant, and are not 


considered invasive. Sources for the revised list include the University of Georgia publications "Landscape Plants for Georgia" and 


"Xeriscape:  A Guide to Developing A Water-Wise Landscape."  The revised list (attached) has been reviewed by several qualified 


horticultural specialists in Fayette County. This request has been discussed with the BOC at workshops but needed to proceed 


through the public hearing process because an ordinance amendment is required. 


Public hearing and subsequent action by the BOC to approve or reject the proposed amendments. 


 


The P.C. recommended APPROVAL with one (1) change 5-0.


N/A


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


No


Yes Thursday, September 25, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes







STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2008 - 08 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY DEVELOPMENT 


REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE V (BUFFER AND LANDSCAPE 


REQUIREMENTS) SO AS TO AMEND THE BUFFER AND LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS 


OF SECTION 8-157. LANDSCAPE AND BUFFER CATEGORIES TO AMEND THE 


SUGGESTED PLANT LISTING; TO AMEND SECTION 8-160. OTHER REQUIREMENTS TO 


AMEND THE TREE CALIPER MEASURMENT; AND SECTION 8-161. PLANTING 


MATERIALS TO AMEND THE SUGGESTED PLANT MATERIALS SET FORTH THEREIN; 


TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, 


AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.  


  BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


  OF FAYETTE COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 


Section I.  The Fayette County Development Regulations, as amended, is hereby further 


amended by adding provisions for buffer and landscape requirements. 


Section II.  The Fayette County Development Regulations, as amended, is hereby further 


amended by deleting Article V (Buffer and Landscape Requirements) in its entirety, and in lieu 


thereof, enacting a new Article V (Buffer and Landscape Requirements) to read as follows: 


ARTICLE V.  BUFFER AND LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS 


 


Sec. 8-156.  Purpose.  The purpose of this Article is to establish minimum requirements for 


landscape areas and buffers in Fayette County’s commercial (including Limited Business), industrial, 


office-institutional, and multi-family zoning districts.  Said requirements are designed to: improve 


the appearance of Fayette County’s commercial and industrial corridors; minimize noise, glare, and 


erosion; provide a visual separation between incompatible uses; and establish measures for water 







 


 


2 


conservation.  E.g., in a C-C, C-H, M-1 and M-2 Zoning District where a lot abuts any residential or 


A-R Zoning District, a buffer shall be provided as specified in the following sections of the Fayette 


County Zoning Ordinance:  6-14 (D)(6) for C-C; 6-15 (D)(6) for C-H; 6-17(D)(6) for M-1 and 6-


18(D)(6) for M-2.  Off street parking associated with such uses shall be governed by such 


requirements within these Development Regulations. 


 


Sec. 8-157.  Landscape and Buffer Categories. 


 


A.  Street Frontage Landscape Areas.  A landscape area shall be established along the rights 


of way of adjoining streets as specified under this Article.  A developer or property owner 


may substitute a planted buffer (greenbelt) as specified under this Article in lieu of a 


landscape area. 


 


B.  Parking Lot Landscape Areas.  Off-street parking lots shall be landscaped in accordance 


with this Article.  For the purpose of this Ordinance, an exterior parking aisle shall refer 


to all parking aisles which adjoin a property line or a required landscape area or buffer 


along a property line, and an interior parking aisle shall refer to parking aisles which do 


not adjoin a property line, a required buffer, or a building wall.  Exterior and interior 


parking aisles shall be terminated at both ends by a landscape island (three (3) feet in 


width by 20 feet in length, typical).  Landscape islands shall be provided for each 150 


feet of continuous bay length. 


 


C.  Side Yard Landscape Areas.  A landscape area shall be established along the side 


property lines of all lots as specified under this Article.  A developer or property owner 


may substitute a planted buffer (greenbelt) as specified under this section in lieu of a 


landscape area.  However, where a side yard buffer is required pursuant to other 


provisions of this Ordinance, a landscape area may not be substituted therefore. 


 


D.  Buffer Areas (Greenbelt).  Buffer areas required by this Ordinance shall be established 


and maintained by the property owner subject to the requirements listed below and those 


specified under this Article. 


 


1.  Listed below are suggested evergreen plant combinations characteristic of buffer 


area plantings:  New under canopy shrubs required in buffer areas shall provide a 


visual screen to a minimum height of four (4) feet upon planting, singularly or in 


combination with various plant types. Additional plant choices can be found at 


the Fayette County Engineering Department’s website. 


 


§ 8-157 – 8-158 DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 


 


  Trees   Shrubs    Groundcovers 


 


  Virginia Pine  Southern Waxmyrtle  Liriope  


Red Cedar  Burfordi Holly   Euonymus 


  Nellie R.  Cleyera      Wintercreeper 


    Stevens Holly Abelia    Asiatic Jasmine 


  Cryptomeria  Pfitzer Juniper        







 


 


3 


  Trees   Shrubs    Groundcovers 


     


  Lusterleaf Holly Hetzi Juniper   Creeping Raspberry 


  Loblolly Pine  Cherry Laurel   Vinca    


  Evergreen Dogwood Leucothoe   Mondo Grass 


  Laurel Oak  Pragense Viburnum  Asiatic Jasmine  


  Chinese Evergreen  Wax Myrtle   Evergreen Ferns  


     Oak      Osmanthus    


  Leyland Cypress Wax Myrtle    


  Green Giant  Osmanthus 


    Western  


     Red Cedar   


  Southern Magnolia    Loropetalum 


Yaupon Holly 


    


2.  Buffer areas may include hardwood or perennial plant materials.  Although it is 


not required that buffer areas be totally planted, such areas must provide an 


evergreen visual screen from the ground to a height of four (4) feet upon planting 


or supplemental planting, and when so planted must include evergreen trees 


which will provide at least 60% evergreen crown cover within three (3) years, 


assuming normal weather conditions.  Where required buffers adjoin 


undeveloped property, the Zoning Administrator may specify less mature 


plantings than those specified above. 


 


Sec. 8-158.  Landscape Plan Requirements.  Landscape Plans must be submitted prior to the 


issuance of Certificate of Zoning Compliance for any development project.  Said plans may be 


submitted as part of a Tree Protection Plan (TPP), as part of a Site Plan, or separately.  At a 


minimum, said plan shall include: 


 


A.  The boundary lines of all buffer and landscape areas; 


 


B.  Locations of existing plant materials to be retained and/or new plant materials to be 


installed, with all details drawn at a scale of one (1) inch to 100 feet or greater. 


 


C.  A plant material list, which shall include: 


 


1.  Common and/or botanical names of all proposed plants. 


 


2.  Plant quantities. 


 


3.  Size and condition of plants.  (Example:  1 ½ caliper, 8-foot height, balled and 


burlapped). 


 


4.  Spacing. 


 


5.  Remarks as necessary to proper plant selection upon installation. 


 







 


 


4 


D.  Project name and developer’s name and telephone number. 


 


§ 8-159 - 8-160 DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 


 


Sec. 8-159.  Fayette County Landscape And Buffer Requirements. 


 
TYPE SIZE OF AREA 


LANDSCAPED 
REQUIRED TREES* 


Number                   Height 
REQUIRED SHRUBS 


Number                   Height 


Street 


Frontage 


Arterials:    20’ 


Collectors:  15’ 


Locals:        10’ 


1 per 20’ 


1 per 20’ 


1 per 20’ 


10’ 
10’ 


10’ 


7 per tree 


7 per tree 


7 per tree 


2’ 


2’ 


2’ 


      
Exterior  


Aisles     10’ 


1 per 30’ 6’ 5 per tree 2’ 


 
Interior  


Aisles     7’ 


1 per 30’ 6’ 5 per tree  2’ 


 
Buildings or  


Walls     5’ 


(Excluding walls 


not visible from 


street) 


  5 per 25 linear feet 


of building wall.


  


2’ 


Landscape Islands 


 3’  


1 per island  5 per island 2’ 


Parking 


Lot 


     


Side Yard Side Property 


Lines  


6’ 


1 per 40’ 6’ 3 per tree 2’ 


      
O-I:    20’ 1 per 10’ 6’ 4’ 
C-C, C-H, 


 L-B:    30’ 
1 per 10’ 6’ 4’ 


L-I    50’ 1 per 10’ 6’ 4’ 
M-1, M-2   75’ 1 per 10’ 6’ 4’ 


Buffer 


(Greenbelt) 


   


As needed to 


provide visual 


screen 


 


*Trees shall be distributed along the entire length of the area to be landscaped. 


 (ORD. No. 98-01, § 1, 1-14-98) 


 


Sec. 8-160.  Other Requirements: 


 


A.  Groundcovers, flowers, stones, and mulch shall be utilized as needed to meet coverage 


requirements. 


 


B.  Grass coverage shall not exceed 25 percent (25%) of required street frontage, parking lot, 


and side yard landscape areas. 


 


C.  Islands shall be required at ends of interior parking aisles and per each 150 feet of 


continuous aisle length. 


 


D.  Required heights listed above shall be height at time of planting. 


 


E.  Landscape strips shall be provided for every other interior-parking isle. 


 







 


 


5 


F.  Buffers are required where property adjoins residential or A-R Zoning Districts.  


Evergreen trees are required in required buffers.  Berms, and/or opaque fences may be 


used to supplement required buffers.  Existing vegetation shall not be removed. 


 


G.  Trees shall have a minimum caliper of two and one-half inches (2½) measured at six 


inches (6”) above ground at time of planting. 


 


H.  Buffers and landscape areas fronting on County maintained roads shall be measured from 


the right-of-way. 


 


I.  All disturbed areas not otherwise addressed in this Ordinance shall have a vegetative 


ground cover for erosion control purposes. 


 


Sec. 8-161.  Planting Materials. 


 


A.  Xeriscape Requirements.  All street frontage, parking lot, and side yard landscape areas 


shall be planted with water-conserving groundcover and vegetation.  Other conservation 


measures are encouraged, including: 


 


1.  Irrigation systems which are electronically set for night and/or early morning 


irrigation; 


 


2.  Designs which collect and recycle water; and 


 


3.  The minimization of overspray onto non-landscaped areas to avoid wasting 


water. 


 


B.  Suggested Planting Materials. 


 


1.  Plants Which Are Native to Georgia 


 


 Trees    Small Shrubs   Large Shrubs 


     (1-8 feet)   (8ft. & up) 


 


 Redbud   Sweet Shrub   Oakleaf Hydrangea 


 Dogwood   Flame Azalea   Yaupon Holly 


 Red Maple   Florida Azalea   Spanish Dagger Yucca 


 Sugar Maple   Yucca    Bottlebrush Buckeye 


 Southern Magnolia  Virgina Sweetspire  Devilwood Osmanthus 


 Fringe Tree   Dwarf Yaupon Holly  Southern Wax Myrtle 


 Overcup Oak   Inkberry Holly   Small Anise-Tree 


 Bald Cypress   Clethra    Cherry Laurel 


 Tulip Poplar   Deciduous Holly 


  


 


 


 


   







 


 


6 


Trees    Small Shrubs   Large Shrubs 


     (1-8 feet)   (8ft. & up) 


 


 Willow Oak 


 River Birch 


 Swamp Chestnut Oak 


 Nuttal Oak 


 Serviceberry 


 Bigleaf Magnolia 


 Blackgum 


 Georgia Gem Ash 


 American Hornbeam 


 American Beech 


 Carolina Silverbell 


 


 Groundcovers     Vines 


 


 Liriope      Carolina Yellow Jessamine 


 Creeping Liriope    Swamp Jessamine 


 Daylilly     Crossvine 


 Mondo Grass     Trumpet Honeysuckle 


 Native Ferns     Climbing Hydrangea 


 Miscanthus      


 Penisetum 


  


2. Other Suitable Plants 


 


Trees  Shrubs Perennials and Groundcovers 


  


 Sycamore Abelia Daylilly 


 Trident Maple Holly  Rudbeckia 


 Crape Myrtle Japanese Barberry Coneflower 


 Winged Elm Beautyberry Yarrow 


 Chinese Pistache Juniper Sedum 


 Shumard Oak Indian Hawthorn Daisy 


 Red Oak Spirea Asiatic Jasmine 


 Lacebark Elm Knock Out Rose Liriope 


 Japanese Zelkova Viburnum Mondo Grass 


 Western Red Cedar Osmanthus Vinca 


 Okame or Yoshino Cherry Loropetulum St. Johnswort 


 Chinese Flame Tree Forsythia 


 Sawtooth Oak Forsythia 


 Saucer Magnolia 


 Dawn Redwood 


 Chaste Tree 


 


 







 


 


7 


 


3. In addition to those listed above, acceptable plant choices can be found at the 


Fayette County Engineering Department’s website. 


 


Sec. 8-162.  Prohibited Plants.  No plants with vigorous root systems shall be planted within any 


sanitary sewer or public water easement.  Such plants include the following: 


 


  Eastern Cottonwood 


  Willow 


  Lombardy Poplar 


 


Sec. 8-163.  Performance Surety. 


 


A.  No occupancy permit shall be issued prior to complying with the specifications of this 


Ordinance and all conditions of zoning. 


 


B.  Landscape Performance Surety.  In the event that the requirements of this Article have 


not been met at the time that a Certificate of Occupancy could otherwise be granted, the 


owner or his agent shall post a Landscape Performance Bond or other County approved 


surety in an amount equal to 110 percent of the cost of materials, labor, and other 


attendant costs, incidental to the installation of the required landscaping. 


 


 Said surety shall: 


 


1.  Be drawn in favor of the Board of Commissioners. 


 


2.  Be in a form satisfactory to the County Attorney. 


 


3.  Specify the time for the completion of the landscaping requirements of this 


Article which shall not be longer than six (6) months following the issuance of a 


temporary Certificate of Occupancy. 


 


Sec. 8-164.  General Maintenance.  Plants required pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance 


shall be attractively maintained.  All dead and/or diseased plants shall be replaced annually as a 


condition of occupancy. 


 


Sec.  8-165 - 8-175.  Reserved. 
 


  Section III.  If any part of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the judgment 


of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect the remainder of this 


enactment, and such remainder of this enactment shall remain in full force and effect. 


  Section IV.  All laws, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which conflict with the 


provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 







 


 


8 


 


  Section V.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon its approval by the Board of 


Commissioners. 


SO ORDAINED, this 25
th


 day of September, 2008. 


 


                            FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD 


OF COMMISSIONERS 


 


  


________________________________________ 


Jack Smith, Chairman 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


________________________________ 


Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk 





		Engineering-Buffer and Landscape Agenda Request File.pdf

		Engineering-Buffer and Landscape Backup

		Engineering-Buffer and Landscape Ordinance










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Finance Mary S. Holland


Mary Holland/Toni Jo Howard Thursday, September 25, 2008


Approval of staff's recommendation for supplemental budget adjustments for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.


Georgia law requires that the final budget be amended to actual expenses.  As a result, a supplemental budget adjustment is 


needed.


Approval of supplemental budget adjustments for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.


N/A


No


No


Yes Thursday, September 25, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


General Fund EXPENDITURES


COMMISSIONERS


10010110 511105 SALARY 1,054.00                   


511118 CELL PHONE 455.00                      


512110 MEDICAL INS. HMO 313.00                      


512112 MEDICAL INS. POS 7,306.00                   


512410 PENSION 758.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 2,048.00                   


512901 LIFE INSURANCE 60.00                        


512904 MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS 9.00                          


512905 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 11.00                        


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 1,097.00                   


523591 LODGING & MEALS 155.00                      


523593 MILEAGE & PARKING 926.00                      


542420 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1.00                          


552111 SELF-INS. DENTAL 508.00                      


512200  FICA/MEDICARE 276.00                  


512902 L-T DISABILITY 29.00                    


512908 DENTAL ADMIN 132.00                  


521217 PUBLIC RELATIONS 622.00                  


522231 OFFICE EQUIPMENT SERVICE 12.00                    


522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE SERVICE 64.00                    


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 546.00                  


523592 AIR FARE 1,076.00               


523600 SEMINARS & DUES . 1,868.00               


531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS, MAGS 4.00                      


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 10,072.00             


14,701.00$               14,701.00$           


ADMINISTRATION


10010320 511300 OVERTIME 125.00                      


10010320 511105 SALARY 125.00                  
125.00$                    125.00$                


ELECTIONS


10010400 511105 SALARY 25,517.00                 


512110 MEDICAL INS. HMO 1,151.00                   


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 4,085.00                   


512410 PENSION 386.00                      


512411 PENSION/MATCH 363.00                      


512902 LONG-TERM DISABILITY 12.00                        


512904 MISC. BENEFITS 1.00                          


523400 PRINTING & BINDING 8,021.00                   


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 515.00                      


531230 COWETA-FAYETTE EMC 66.00                        


552111 SELF-INS.  DENTAL 26.00                        


511300 OVERTIME 468.00                  


512901 LIFE INSURANCE 16.00                    


512905 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 3.00                      


512908 ` DENTAL ADMIN 91.00                    


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 182.00                  


522231 OFFICE EQUIPMENT SERVICE 2,716.00               


522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 200.00                  


522321 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 568.00                  


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA


BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING 6/30/08


1 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 29.00                    


523202 POSTAGE 2,345.00               


523300 ADVERTISING 82.00                    


531174 ROAD SIGNS 150.00                  


542410 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 554.00                  


542420 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 897.00                  


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 31,842.00             


40,143.00$               40,143.00$           


FINANCE


10010510 512411 PENSION-MATCH 48.00                        


512410 PENSION 48.00                    
48.00$                      48.00$                  


PURCHASING


10010517 511105 SALARY 1,122.00                   


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 102.00                      


512411 PENSION 840.00                      


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 95.00                        


522236 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 2,159.00               
2,159.00$                 2,159.00$             


LAW DEPARTMENT


10010530 511105 SALARY 4,052.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 1,098.00                   


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 101.00                      


552111 SELF-INS. DENTAL 5.00                          


521213 LEGAL SERVICES 5,256.00               
5,256.00$                 5,256.00$             


INFORMATION SYSTEMS


10010535 511105 SALARY 18,592.00                 


511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 385.00                      


512110 MEDICAL INS. HMO 10,797.00                 


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 1,523.00                   


512411 PENSION - MATCH 2,821.00                   


521318 OTHER FEES & SERVICES 36.00                        


522231 OFFICE EQUIPMENT SERV. 1,296.00                   


522233 VEHICLE REPAIR 35.00                        


522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 930.00                      


522236 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 211.00                      


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICE 64.00                        


523300 ADVERTISING 1,687.00                   


523591 LODGING, MEALS 123.00                      


523592 AIR FARE 25.00                        


523593 MILEAGE 11.00                        


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 117.00                      


531270 GAS 738.00                      


542391 FURNITURE 230.00                      


512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE POS 7,759.00               


512410 PENSION  4% BASE 465.00                  


512901 LIFE INSURANCE 106.00                  


512902 L-T DISABILITY 95.00                    


512904 MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS 8.00                      


512905 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 16.00                    


512908 DENTAL ADMINISTRATION COST 225.00                  


523202 POSTAGE 38.00                    


523600 SEMINARS & DUES 4,466.00               


2 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


I.S. 531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS, MAGS 150.00                  


531799 I.S. INVENTORY 2,927.00               


542410 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 271.00                  


542420 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 4,464.00               


552111 SELF INSURANCE DENTAL 283.00                  


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 18,348.00             


39,621.00$               39,621.00$           


HUMAN RESOURCES


10010540 511105 SALARIES 17,169.00                 


511300 OVERTIME REGULAR 44.00                        


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 1,579.00                   


512411 PENSION-MATCHING 980.00                      


512902 LONG TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE 30.00                        


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 6,470.00               


521217 PUBLIC RELATIONS 1,000.00               


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 1,500.00               


522236 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 6,500.00               


523400 PRINTING/BINDING 1,400.00               


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,500.00               


542420 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,432.00               
19,802.00$               19,802.00$           


TAX  COMMISSIONER


10010545 511300 OVERTIME REGULAR 67.00                        


512112 MEDICAL INS. POS 33.00                        


512411 PENSION-MATCHING 84.00                        


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3.00                          


542410 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 836.00                      


542392 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,023.00               
1,023.00$                 1,023.00$             


TAX ASSESSOR


10010550 511105 SALARIES 17,218.00                 


511300 OVERTIME REGULAR 21.00                        


512110 MEDICAL INS. HMO 907.00                      


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 1,137.00                   


512410 PENSION 216.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 1,956.00                   


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICE 1.00                          


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 17,700.00             


522233 VEHICLE REPAIR SERVICE 3,756.00               
21,456.00$               21,456.00$           


ENGINEERING


10010575 523593 MILEAGE & PARKING 117.00                      


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 117.00                  
117.00$                    117.00$                


BUILDINGS & GROUNDS MAINTENANCE


10010565 511105 SALARY 12,112.00                 


511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 35.00                        


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 1,470.00                   


512411 PENSION - MATCH 3,345.00                   


523202 POSTAGE 1.00                          


541320 BUILDING & STRUCTURES 9,000.00               


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 7,963.00               
16,963.00$               16,963.00$           


3 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


JUDGES, COURT REPORTERS


10020160 521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 8,636.00                   


522231 OFFICE EQUIPMENT SERVICE 32.00                        


523202 POSTAGE 367.00                      


523852 COURT REPORT SERVICES 6,418.00                   


523972 WITNESS SERVICES 4,148.00                   


531600 SMALL EQUIPMENT 76.00                        


542410 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 118.00                      


511105 SALARY 2,324.00               


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 180.00                  


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 253.00                  


523855 CIRCUIT COURT CONTRACT 2,031.00               


523971 INDIGENT DEFENSE 5,135.00               


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 375.00                  


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 9,497.00               


19,795.00$               19,795.00$           


CLERK OF SUPERIOR COURT


10020180 511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 100.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 1,765.00                   


531118 COURT RECORDS B00K SUPPLY 1,865.00               
1,865.00$                 1,865.00$             


CLERK OF STATE COURT


10020310 512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 341.00                      


512410 PENSION 36.00                        


512902 LONG TERM DISABILITY INS. 2.00                          


552111 SELF INS. DENTAL 19.00                        


542392 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 398.00                  
398.00$                    398.00$                


STATE COURT SOLICITOR


10020320 511105 SALARY 3,445.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 229.00                      


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 278.00                      


512410 PENSION 152.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 83.00                        


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 50.00                        


523700 EMPLOYEE TRAINING 300.00                      


531270 GASOLINE 297.00                      


552111 SELF INSURANCE DENTAL 14.00                        


523972 WITNESS SERVICES 3,300.00               


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,548.00               
4,848.00$                 4,848.00$             


STATE COURT JUDGE


10020330 511105 SALARY 6,346.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 7,347.00                   


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 1,620.00                   


512410 PENSION 197.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 368.00                      


552111 SELF INSURANCE DENTAL 10.00                        


512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE POS 7,000.00               


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 8,888.00               
15,888.00$               15,888.00$           


4 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


MAGISTRATE COURT


10020400 511105 SALARY 6,852.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 517.00                      


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 573.00                      


512410 PENSION 290.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 176.00                      


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 73.00                        


552111 SELF-INSURANCE DENTAL 32.00                        


512901 LIFE INSURANCE 37.00                    


512902 LONG-TERM DISABILITY 18.00                    


512905 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 9.00                      


512908 DENTAL ADMIN COST 231.00                  


522231 OFFICE EQUIPMENT SERVICE 171.00                  


522233 VEHICLE REPAIR 1.00                      


522321 EQUIPMENT RENTAL * 820.00                  


523180 INSURANCE, BOND SERVICES 25.00                    


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 79.00                    


523202 POSTAGE 146.00                  


523591 LODGING & MEALS 2,901.00               


523593 MILEAGE & PARKING 2.00                      


523971 INDIGENT DEFENSE 45.00                    


531106 COMMUNICATION SUPPLIES 150.00                  


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 82.00                    


531116 OTHER SUPPLIES 290.00                  


531270 GASOLINE 173.00                  


531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS 113.00                  


531701 UNIFORMS & SUPPLIES 210.00                  


542392 OFFICE EQUIPMENT  22.00                    


542410 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 26.00                    


542420 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 14.00                    


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 2,948.00               


8,513.00$                 8,513.00$             


PROBATE COURT


10020450 512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE POS 59.00                        


512600 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 7,887.00                   


511105 SALARY 7,946.00               
7,946.00$                 7,946.00$             


JUVENILE COURT


10020600 511105 SALARY 6,170.00                   


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 723.00                      


512410 PENSION 253.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 1,411.00                   


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 200.00                      


523972 INDIGENT COURT APPOINTED 8.00                          


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 2,813.00               


512901 LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUM 34.00                    


512902 L-T DISABILITY 12.00                    


512905 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PR 4.00                      


512908 DENTAL ADMIN COST 115.00                  


522231 OFFICE EQUIPMENT SERVICE 356.00                  


522321 EQUIPMENT RENTAL * 161.00                  


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 177.00                  


523202 POSTAGE 6.00                      


523591 LODGING & MEALS 119.00                  


5 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


Juvenile Court 523593 MILEAGE & PARKING 89.00                    


10020600 523600 SEMINARS & DUES 10.00                    


523852 COURT REPORTER SERVICE 500.00                  


523972 WITNESS SERVICES 175.00                  


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,703.00               


531116 OTHER SUPPLIES 44.00                    


531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS, MAGS 155.00                  


531701 UNIFORMS & SUPPLIES 20.00                    


542392 OFFICE EQUIPMENT * 74.00                    


542410 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 175.00                  


542420 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 28.00                    


552111 SELF-INS. DENTAL 463.00                  


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 1,532.00               


8,765.00$                 8,765.00$             


NON-DEPARTMENTAL PUBLIC SERVICE


10030090 522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE SERVICE 9,054.00                   


523180 INSURANCE, BOND SERVICES 10,446.00                 


531231 GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 23,961.00                 


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICE 826.00                  


531210 CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE WATER 5,179.00               


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 37,456.00             


43,461.00$               43,461.00$           


MARSHAL


10030290 511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 105.00                      


511300 OVERTIME 21.00                        


512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE POS 1,848.00                   


512411 PENSION - MATCH 51.00                        


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 2,025.00               
2,025.00$                 2,025.00$             


FAYETTE COUNTY SHERIFF'S DIVISION


ADMINISTRATION


10030310 511105 SALARY 4,642.00                   


512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE POS 2,073.00                   


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 751.00                      


512410 PENSION 4% BASE 167.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 327.00                      


512600 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 3,200.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 7,379.00               


521213 LEGAL SERVICES 3,781.00               
11,160.00$               11,160.00$           


CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION


10030321 511105 SALARY 38,850.00                 


511300 ** OVERTIME 35,337.00                 ** Agenda item


512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE POS 2,558.00                   


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 13,777.00                 


512411 PENSION - MATCH 5,855.00                   


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 2,682.00                   


521318 OTHER FEES & SERVICES 616.00                      


522231 OFFICE EQUIPMENT SERVICE 61.00                        


522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 8,973.00                   


6 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


CID


10030321 523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICE 9,273.00                   


531106 COMMUNICATION SUPPLIES 858.00                      


531107 TIRES 1,464.00                   


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 576.00                      


531116 OTHER SUPPLIES 520.00                      


531270 GASOLINE 74,411.00                 


531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS, MAGS 7.00                          


531701 UNIFORMS & SUPPLIES 125.00                      


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 16,006.00             


512410 PENSION 4% BASE 498.00                  


512901 LIFE INSURANCE 523.00                  


512902 L-T DISABILITY 374.00                  


512904 MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS 27.00                    


512905 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 74.00                    


512908 DENTAL ADMIN COST 1,114.00               


521216 MEDICAL SERVICES 500.00                  


521217 PUBLIC RELATIONS 12.00                    


522233 VEHICLE REPAIRS 22,573.00             


522236 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 726.00                  


523202 POSTAGE 141.00                  


523400 PRINTING & BINDINGS 135.00                  


523593 MILEAGE & PARKING 42.00                    


5311109 PHOTO SUPPLIES 3,076.00               


531117 SAFETY SUPPLIES 2,497.00               


552111 SELF-INSURANCE DENTAL 1,893.00               


10030323 511105 UNIFORM PATROL - SALARY 145,732.00           


195,943.00$             195,943.00$         


** The Sheriff Department has item to increase overtime on 9/11/08 $6,612.15, increasing


511300 Overtime budget from $141,303.00  to  $147,915.15.


UNIFORM PATROL


10030323 511300 OVERTIME 7,990.00                   


512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE POS 185.00                      


522233 VEHICLE REPAIR SERVICE 570.00                      


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICE 2,943.00                   


523202 POSTAGE 121.00                      


531107 TIRES 3,643.00                   


531270 GASOLINE 20,293.00                 


531701 UNIFORMS & SUPPLIES 3,562.00                   


542420 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 342.00                      


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 39,649.00             
39,649.00$               39,649.00$           


JAIL OPERATIONS


10030326 511105 SALARY 14,296.00                 


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 7,737.00                   


512411 PENSION - MATCH 6,363.00                   


512600 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 2,601.00                   


521216 MEDICAL SERVICES 6,302.00                   


521218 PRISONERS MEDICAL SERVICE 19,133.00                 


522232 OPERATING EQUIPMENT SERVICE 2,476.00                   


522253 PLUMBING SERVICES 872.00                      


522265 LANDSCAPING/GRADING 50.00                        


522321 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 244.00                      


523200 AT&T  COMMUNICATION SERVICE 181.00                      


531112 CLEANING SUPPLIES 699.00                      


7 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


Jail
10030326 531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 691.00                      


531116 OTHER SUPPLIES 3,550.00                   


531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS, MAGS 54.00                        


531600 SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,303.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 30,000.00             


522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 40,552.00             
70,552.00$               70,552.00$           


TRAFFIC CONTROL/TRAINING


10030330 511300 OVERTIME 1,089.00                   


512411 PENSION - MATCH 2,866.00                   


521318 OTHER FEES & SERVICES 262.00                      


522236 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 378.00                      


531117 SAFETY SUPPLIES 214.00                      


531270 GASOLINE 4,986.00                   


531444 DEMONSTRATION SUPPLIES 163.00                      


542165 OTHER NON-MOTOR EQUIPMENT 1.00                          


522233 VEHICLE REPAIR SERVICE 9,959.00               
9,959.00$                 9,959.00$             


COUNTY CORONER


10030700 511105 SALARY 875.00                      


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 65.00                        


512410 PENSION - 4% BASE 56.00                        


512411 PENSION - MATCH 56.00                        


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICE 896.00                      


552111 SELF-INSURANCE DENTAL 520.00                      


523591 LODGING & MEALS 1,500.00               


523600 SEMINARS & DUES 968.00                  
2,468.00$                 2,468.00$             


ANIMAL CONTROL


10030910 511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 105.00                      


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 2,731.00                   


512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE POS 621.00                      


512410 PENSION - 4% BASE 295.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 2,014.00                   


523591 LODGING & MEALS 97.00                        


531231 GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 343.00                      


552111 SELF-INSURANCE DENTAL 255.00                      


511105 SALARY 1,040.00               


511300 OVERTIME 250.00                  


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 334.00                  


512908 DENTAL ADMIN. COST 115.00                  


521212 LICENSE/PROFESSIONAL FEES 325.00                  


521216 MEDICAL SERVICES 536.00                  


521217 PUBLIC RELATIONS 510.00                  


522231 OFFICE EQUIPMENT SERVICE 534.00                  


522233 VEHICLE REPAIR 432.00                  


522236 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 400.00                  


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICE 113.00                  


523202 POSTAGE 288.00                  


523300 ADVERTISING 150.00                  


523400 PRINTING & BINDING 287.00                  


523600 SEMINARS & DUES 544.00                  


531107 TIRES 295.00                  


531112 CLEANING SUPPLIES 276.00                  


531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS & MAGS 32.00                    
6,461.00$                 6,461.00$             


8 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


PUBLIC SAFETY & EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT


10030930 511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 315.00                      


523202 POSTAGE 304.00                      


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 883.00                      


531230 COWETA FAYETTE EMC 45.00                        


531231 GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 24.00                        


531300 FOOD & CATERED MEALS 383.00                      


522232 OPERATING EQUIPMENT SERVICES 1,954.00               
1,954.00$                 1,954.00$             


PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION


10040100 511105 SALARY 12,713.00                 


511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 105.00                      


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 1,357.00                   


523200 AT & T  COMMUNICATION SERVICE 5.00                          


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 459.00                  


512410 PENSION  4% BASE 325.00                  


512411 PENSION - MATCH 574.00                  


512901 LIFE INSURANCE 26.00                    


512902 L-T DISABILITY 76.00                    


512904 MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS 1.00                      


512905 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 3.00                      


512908 DENTAL ADMIN. 46.00                    


522233 VEHICLE REPAIR 87.00                    


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 1,432.00               


523202 POSTAGE 139.00                  


523591 LODGING & MEALS 1,100.00               


523593 MILEAGE & PARKING 63.00                    


523600 SEMINARS & DUES 421.00                  


531107 TIRES 250.00                  


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 88.00                    


531270 GASOLINE 58.00                    


552111 SELF - INSURANCE DENTAL 33.00                    


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 8,999.00               


14,180.00$               14,180.00$           


ROAD DEPARTMENT


10040220 511105 SALARY 38,997.00                 


511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 245.00                      


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 3,115.00                   


512410 PENSION - 4% BASE 311.00                      


531230 COWETA FAYETTE EMC 356.00                      


531231 GA POWER COMPANY 33.00                        


541210 OTHER IMPROVEMENTS 8,620.00                   


531171 ASPHALT & TACK 51,677.00             
51,677.00$               51,677.00$           


MAINTENANCE & SHOP


10040900 511300 OVERTIME 127.00                      


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 1,329.00                   


512411 PENSION - MATCH 1,484.00                   


521318 OTHER FEES & SERVICES 18.00                        


522110 DISPOSAL SERVICES 850.00                      


522233 VEHICLE REPAIR SERVICE 2,551.00                   


522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 40.00                        


523202 POSTAGE 6.00                          


9 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


10040900 Maintenance & Shop


523700 EMPLOYEE TRAINING/EDUCATION 300.00                      


531116 OTHER SUPPLIES 1,032.00                   


531270 GASOLINE 4,634.00                   


511105 SALARY 3,200.00               


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 3,400.00               


522232 OPERATING EQUIPMENT SERVICE 1,600.00               


523591 LODGING & MEALS 2,300.00               


531112 CLEANING SUPPLIES 1,200.00               


531701 UNIFORMS & SUPPLIES 671.00                  
12,371.00$               12,371.00$           


PUBLIC HEALTH


10050110 523200 AT&T COMMUNICATION SERVICE 5.00                          


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICE 199.00                      


531270 GASOLINE 2,063.00                   


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES  3.00                      


522233 VEHICLE REPAIRS 286.00                  


522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 88.00                    


531107 TIRES 400.00                  


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 100.00                  


572016 PHYSICAL HEALTH SERVICES 1,000.00               


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 390.00                  


2,267.00$                 2,267.00$             


RECREATION


10060110 511105 SALARY 2,184.00                   


511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 105.00                      


511300 OVERTIME 14.00                        


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 321.00                      


512411 PENSION  - MATCH 759.00                      


5121100 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 3,383.00               
3,383.00$                 3,383.00$             


LIBRARY


10060500 511105 SALARY 26,730.00                 


511300 OVERTIME 61.00                        


512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE  POS 61.00                        


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 2,226.00                   


512410 PENSION 4% BASE 218.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 797.00                      


531210 CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE WATER 94.00                        


531213 STORMWATER CHARGES 42.00                        


531231 GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 1,952.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE  HMO 2,785.00               


512901 LIFE INSURANCE 85.00                    


512902 L-T DISABILITY 46.00                    


512904 MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS 5.00                      


512905 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 16.00                    


512908 DENTAL ADMIN. 220.00                  


521217 PUBLIC RELATIONS 85.00                    


522110 DISPOSAL SERVICES 92.00                    


522112 JANITORIAL SERVICES 3,706.00               


522231 OFFICE EQUIPMENT SERVICE 461.00                  


522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 12,377.00             


523202 POSTAGE 2,198.00               


10 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


Library 523300 ADVERTISING 220.00                  


10060500 523591 LODGING & MEALS 7.00                      


523592 AIR FARE 420.00                  


523593 MILEAGE & PARKING 209.00                  


523600 SEMINARS & DUES 2.00                      


531109 PHOTO SUPPLIES 240.00                  


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 187.00                  


531220 NATURAL GAS SERVICE 2,582.00               


531300 FOOD & CATERED FOOD 369.00                  


531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS & MAGS 1,750.00               


542392 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 125.00                  


552111 SELF- INSURANCE DENTAL 343.00                  


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 3,651.00               


32,181.00$               32,181.00$           


COUNTY EXTENSION


10070130 531270 GASOLINE 68.00                        


531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS & MAGS 68.00                    
68.00$                      68.00$                  


PLANNING & ZONING


10070411 511105 SALARY 5,604.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 161.00                      


512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE  POS 65.00                        


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 426.00                      


512410 PENSION 4% BASE 241.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 80.00                        


552111 SELF-INSURANCE  DENTAL 17.00                        


511203 PLANNING COMMISSION 1,000.00               


511204 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 1,594.00               


523600 SEMINARS & DUES 4,000.00               
6,594.00$                 6,594.00$             


DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY


10070510 531210 CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE WATER 976.00                      


531231 GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 1,706.00                   


531213 STORMWATER CHARGES 1.00                      


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 2,681.00               


2,682.00$                 2,682.00$             


General Fund  REVENUE


NON-FUNCTION


10000001 314200 BEVERAGE TAX - EXCISE 21,800.00                 


319500 FIFAS & FEES 2,800.00                   


389002 MISCELLANEOUS 14,500.00                 


392100 SALE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 21,400.00                 


CHARGES FOR SERVICES


10010002 341910 GENERAL - ELECTION SALES 22,300.00                 


10020002 341120 JUDICIAL - STATE COURT FEES 27,000.00                 


10030002 346110 P.S. ANIMAL CTRL & SHELTER FEES 4,400.00                   


10030003 371002 P.S. ANIMAL CONTROL DONATIONS 1,400.00                   


10040002 322990 P.W. UTILITY PERMITS 700.00                      


10060002 347100 CUL/REC-LIBRARY FEES 2,500.00                   


10060002 347500 CUL/REC-REC PROGRAM FEES 39,500.00                 


10070002 341390 HOUSE/DEV CO.DIGITAL MAP FEES 3,400.00                   


11 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


General Fund Revenue


CAPITAL GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS


10040004 337040 P.W. - ROADS BROOKS 168,000.00               


10060003 371005 CUL/REC - LIBRARY DONATIONS 2,000.00                   


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY (331,700.00)             -                        


   -$                         -$                      


REVENUES WITH AN INCREASE  OF 20% OR MORE - CONTINGENCY INCREASED BY $331,700


FUND 205 LAW LIBRARY


REVENUE


20500001 361000 INTEREST (1,076.00)                 


20520002 341110 SUPERIOR COURT FEES (16,948.00)               


EXPENDITURES  


20520750 521318 OTHER FEES & SERVICES 9.00                          


20520750 521321 DATA PROCESSING 18,542.00                 


20520750 523850 CONTRACT LABOR 2,100.00                   


20520750 523989 BANK SERVICE FEES 71.00                        


20520750 521316 TECHNICAL SERVICE -                           2,100.00               


20520750 522231 OFFICE EQUIPMENT SERVICE -                           100.00                  


20520750 523202 POSTAGE -                           9.00                      


20520750 531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS & MAGS -                           4,305.00               


20520750 542410 COMPUTER SOFTWARE UPGRADES -                           13,410.00             


FUND BALANCE 17,226.00                 -                        
19,924.00$               19,924.00$           


LAW  LIBRARY NET FUND BALANCE CHANGE  = INCREASE $17,226


FUND 210 STATE CONFISCATED PROPERTY


REVENUE


21030003 351370 STATE CONFISCATED (81,224.00)               


EXPENDITURES


21030390 521217 PUBLIC RELATIONS 12,118.00                 


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICE 17,322.00                 


531701 UNIFORMS & SUPPLIES 261.00                      


521214 INVESTIGATED SERVICE 23,000.00             


542200 VEHICLES 6,701.00               


 FUND BALANCE 81,224.00                 -                        
29,701.00$               29,701.00$           


STATE CONFISCATED PROPERTY FUND BALANCE INCREASE $81,224.


FUND 211 U.S. CUSTOMS


REVENUE


21100001 361000 INTEREST (610.00)                    


21130003 351380 CONFISCATED (4,694.00)                 


EXPENDITURES


21130390 521318 OTHER FEES & SERVICES 245.00                      


SPECIAL REVENUES


12 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


523591 LODGING & MEALS 1,014.00                   


531270 GASOLINE 150.00                      


542165 OTHER NON-MOTOR EQUIPMENT 44,375.00                 


542410 COMPUTER SOFTWARE, UPGRADES 68.00                        


542510 FIREARMS & PROTECTIVE DEVICES 470.00                      


FUND BALANCE 41,018.00             


41,018.00$               41,018.00$           


U.S. CUSTOMERS' FUND BALANCE DECREASE IS $41,018.


FUND 212 FEDERAL CONFISCATED PROPERTY


REVENUE  


21200001 361000 INTEREST (3,607.00)                 


383000 INSURANCE REIMB. (7,743.00)                 


389002 OTHER REVENUE (152,458.00)             


21230003 351380 CONFISCATED FUNDS & PROPERTY (744,873.00)             


389009 OVERTIME REIMBURSEMENT (66,201.00)               


EXPENDITURES


21230390 521214 INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 148,595.00               


521216 MEDICAL SERVICES 210.00                      


521217 PUBLIC RELATIONS 10,760.00                 


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 229,862.00               


521318 OTHER FEES & SERVICES 430.00                      


522233 VEHICLE REPAIR 24,835.00                 


522234 RADIO REPAIR 1,293.00                   


522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 35,345.00                 


522236 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 7,514.00                   


522310 LAND & BUILDING RENTAL 2,831.00                   


522320 CAR RENTAL 265.00                      


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 17,782.00                 


523202 POSTAGE 406.00                      


523591 LODGING & MEALS 46,145.00                 


523592 AIR FARE 502.00                      


523600 SEMINARS & DUES 2,020.00                   


523700 EMPLOYEE TRAINING 34,085.00                 


523989 BANK SERVICE FEES 100.00                      


531106 COMMUNICATION SUPPLIES 3,054.00                   


531111 MEAL SUPPLIES 32.00                        


531112 CLEANING SUPPLIES 137.00                      


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 416.00                      


531116 OTHER SUPPLIES 4,537.00                   


531117 SAFETY SUPPLIES 4,960.00                   


531231 GEORGIA POWER 1,124.00                   


531270 GASOLINE 17,983.00                 


531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS & MAGS 863.00                      


531701 UNIFORMS & SUPPLIES 12,260.00                 


542165 OTHER NON-MOTOR EQUIPMENT 68,248.00                 


542200 VEHICLES 301,321.00               


542391 FURNITURE 12,848.00                 


542410 COMPUTER SOFTWARE/UPGRADES 12,299.00                 


542420 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 28,432.00                 


542510 FIREARMS & PROTECTIVE DEVICES 36,253.00                 


542520 SAFETY EQUIPMENT 25,521.00                 


542530 BUSINESS & COMM. MACHINES 70,536.00                 


FUND BALANCE 188,922.00           


188,922.00$             188,922.00$         


FEDERAL CONFISCATED FUND BALANCE NET DECREASE OF $188,922


13 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


FUND 215  EMERGENCY PHONE  E-911


EXPENDITURES


21530800 511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 210.00                      


511300 OVERTIME 13,493.00                 


512411 PENSION - MATCH 6,171.00                   


531230 COWETA FAYETTE-EMC 2,191.00                   


511105 SALARY 22,065.00             
22,065.00$               22,065.00$           


FUND 216 JAIL CONSTRUCTION SURCHARGE


REVENUE


21630002 337021 REVENUE JAIL CONST. FAYETTEVILLE (117,000.00)             


EXPENDITURES


21630355 531301 PRISONERS MEALS 1,518.00                   


FUND BALANCE 115,482.00               -                        
-$                         -$                      


JAIL CONSTRUCTION SURCHARGE FUND BALANCE NET INCREASE OF $115,482


FUND 218 VICTIM'S ASSISTANCE


EXPENDITURES


21850553 511105 SALARY 3,065.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 156.00                      


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 296.00                      


512410 PENSION 4% BASE 142.00                      


512411 PENSION - MATCH 49.00                        


552111 SELF-INSURANCE DENTAL 11.00                        


523591 LODGING & MEALS 3,000.00               


523593 MILEAGE & PARKING 719.00                  
3,719.00$                 3,719.00$             


REVENUE


21800001 390100 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND (87,000.00)                ONE-SIDED


GENERAL FUND


10000001 610218 TRANSFER TO VICTIM'S ASSISTANCE 87,000.00                 


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 87,000.00             


87,000.00$               87,000.00$           


 


TRANSFER TO COVER NEGATIVE FUND BALANCE


FUND 227 JUVENILE OFFENDERS GRANT FUND


REVENUE


22720003 334219 GRANTS (1,040.00)                 


22700001 390100 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND (4,500.00)                 


EXPENDITURES


22720620 523990 JUVENILE OFFENDERS PROGRAM 5,540.00                    -                        


-$                         -$                      


GENERAL FUND


10000001 610227 TRANSFER TO JUVENILE OFFENDERS 4,500.00                   


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 4,500.00               


4,500.00$                 4,500.00$             


TRANSFER TO COVER NO FUND BALANCE


14 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


FUND 270 FIRE SERVICES


REVENUE


27030003 371001 DONATIONS (1,200.00)                 


EXPENDITURES


27030550 511105 SALARY 21,071.00                 


511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 420.00                      


511300 OVERTIME 4,253.00                   


512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE POS 2,346.00                   


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 8,567.00                   


 522232 OPERATING EQUIPMENT SERVICE 7.00                          


 522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 299.00                      


522256 UTILITY SERVICES 37,800.00                 


522321 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 606.00                      


531114 OFFICE SUPPLIES 173.00                      


531116 OTHER SUPPLIES 49.00                        


531230 COWETA FAYETTE EMC 5,438.00                   


531270 GASOLINE 7,191.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 9,602.00               


512410 PENSION 4% BASE 4,476.00               


512411 PENSION - MATCH 1,999.00               


512412 PENSION - FIRE 480.00                  


512901 LIFE INSURANCE 768.00                  


512902 L-T DISABILITY 1,201.00               


512904 MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS 194.00                  


512905 EAP 384.00                  


512908 DENTAL ADMIN COST 2,700.00               


521216 MEDICAL SERVICES 5,873.00               


522233 VEHICLE REPAIRS 1,505.00               


522234 RADIO REPAIRS 279.00                  


522265 LANDSCAPE/GRADING 283.00                  


523200 AT&T 451.00                  


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 5,113.00               


523593 MILEAGE & PARKING 140.00                  


523700 EMPLOYEE TRAINING/EDUCATION 1,857.00               


531106 COMMUNICATION SUPPLIES 137.00                  


531107 TIRES 3,375.00               


531112 CLEANING SUPPLIES 1,286.00               


531210 CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE WATER 272.00                  


531211 FAYETTE COUNTY WATER 593.00                  


531220 NATURAL GAS SERVICE 5,755.00               


531231 GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 8,261.00               


531441 SUBSCRIPTIONS, BOOKS & MAGS. 581.00                  


542165 OTHER NON-MOTOR EQUIPMENT 281.00                  


542420 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 374.00                  


542520 SAFETY EQUIPMENT 157.00                  


27030550 579000 FIRE - CONTINGENCY 28,643.00             


87,020.00$               87,020.00$           


FUND 271 STREET LIGHT


REVENUE


27100001 390100 TRANSFER-GENERAL FUND (34,760.00)               


EXPENDITURES


27140260 531230 COWETA FAYETTE EMC 33,650.00                 


531231 GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 1,110.00                   


-$                         -$                      


15 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


Street Light Fund


10000001 610271 TRANSFER TO STREET LIGHT FUND 34,760.00                 


10010599 579000 CONTINGENCY 34,760.00             


34,760.00$               34,760.00$           


TRANSFER TO COVER NEGATIVE FUND BALANCE


FUND 272 EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES


27230600 511105 SALARY 69,112.00                 


511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 210.00                      


511300 OVERTIME 9,797.00                   


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 6,990.00                   


512410 PENSION 4% BASE 2,751.00                   


512411 PENSION - MATCH 2,081.00                   


521216 MEDICAL SERVICES 6,045.00                   


522232 OPERATING EQUIPMENT SERVICE 117.00                      


522233 VEHICLE REPAIRS 1,184.00                   


522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 140.00                      


523200 AT&T 535.00                      


523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 3,073.00                   


523700 EMPLOYEE TRAINING 696.00                      


523989 BANK SERVICE FEES 233.00                      


531104 PHARMACEUTICAL SUPPLIES 1,564.00                   


531108 MEDICAL SUPPLIES 2,774.00                   


531210 CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE WATER 480.00                      


531211 FAYETTE COUNTY WATER 374.00                      


531220 NATURAL GAS SERVICE 1,476.00                   


531230 COWETA FAYETTE EMC 11,516.00                 


531231 GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 4,876.00                   


531280 OTHER ENERGY SUPPLIES 213.00                      


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 1,367.00               


512112 MEDICAL INSURANCE POS 75.00                    


512901 LIFE INSURANCE 217.00                  


512902 L-T DISABILITY 72.00                    


512904 MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS 12.00                    


512905 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 68.00                    


512908 DENTAL ADMIN COST 997.00                  


521212 LICENSE/PROFESSIONAL FEES 3,358.00               


521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 2,436.00               


522234 RADIO REPAIR SERVICES 148.00                  


522321 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 692.00                  


523591 LODGING & MEALS 92.00                    


523592 AIR FARE 36.00                    


523593 MILEAGE & PARKING 95.00                    


523600 SEMINARS & DUES 881.00                  


531116 OTHER SUPPLIES 1,185.00               


531117 SAFETY SUPPLIES 8.00                      


531270 GASOLINE 572.00                  


531701 UNIFORMS & SUPPLIES 4,008.00               


542420 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 111.00                  


552111 SELF-INSURANCE   DENTAL 528.00                  


FUND BALANCE 109,279.00           


126,237.00$             126,237.00$         


16 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


ENTERPRISE FUNDS


FUND 505 WATER SYSTEM


ADMINISTRATION


50541010 511118 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 5.00                          


50541010 521217 PUBLIC RELATIONS 78.00                        


50541010 521316 TECHNICAL SERVICES 301.00                      


50541010 521318 OTHER FEES & SERVICES 21.00                        


50541010 522110 DISPOSAL SERVICES 35.00                        


50541010 523201 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 421.00                      


50541010 531116 OTHER SUPPLIES 933.00                      


50541010 531200 ENERGY SUPPLIES 64.00                        


50541010 531220 NATURAL GAS 58.00                        


50541010 531270 GASOLINE 40.00                        


50541010 542420 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 3,217.00                   


50541010 511105 SALARY 26,879.00             


CUSTOMER SERVICE


50541012 511105 SALARY 10,279.00                 


50541012 512200 FICA/MEDICARE 742.00                      


50541012 512410 PENSION 4% BASE 335.00                      


METER READERS


50541016 511105 SALARY 8,191.00                   


50541016 512200 FICA/MEDICARE 613.00                      


50541016 512410 PENSION 4% BASE 354.00                      


50541016 512411 PENSION - MATCH 641.00                      


ADMINISTRATION - DEBT F/A


50541100 523988 MISCELLANEOUS 540.00                      


542135 OPERATING EQUIPMENT 11.00                        


CROSSTOWN WP


50543030 522110 DISPOSAL SERVICE 3,231.00                   


50543030 522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 58.00                        


50543030 522321 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 59.00                        


50543030 523600 SEMINARS & DUES 120.00                      


50543030 531230 COWETA FAYETTE EMC 4,069.00                   


50543030 531231 GEORGIA POWER 74,119.00                 


50543030 531116 OTHER SUPPLIES 6,000.00               


50543030 531182 CHEMICALS 15,000.00             


OPERATORS


50543031 512902 L-T DISABILITY 50.00                        


50543031 512904 MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS 6.00                          


50543031 511105 SALARY 14,000.00             


50543031 511300 OVERTIME 7,000.00               


50543031 512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 4,350.00               


50543031 512200 FICA/MEDICARE 1,350.00               


50543031 512410 PENSION 4% BASE 1,100.00               


50543031 512411 PENSION - MATCH 1,500.00               


MAINTENANCE -                        


50543032 511105 SALARY 4,562.00                   -                        


50543032 511300 OVERTIME 678.00                      


50543032 512200 FICA/MEDICARE 579.00                      


50543032 512410 PENSION 4% BASE 181.00                      


50543032 512411 PENSION - MATCH 666.00                      


50543032 512902 L-T DISABILITY 4.00                          


50543032 512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 1,500.00               


17 of 18







ORG OBJECT  DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE


ANALYST


50543033 511105 SALARY 1,661.00                   


50543033 512200 FICA/MEDICARE 224.00                      


50543033 512411 PENSION - MATCH 528.00                      


50543033 511300 OVERTIME 820.00                  


50543033 512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 5,000.00               


50541010 511105 SALARY - ADMIN. 33,175.00             


 


SOUTH FAYETTE WP


50543040 522230 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 8,655.00                   


50543040 522235 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 687.00                      


50543040 531230 COWETA FAYETTE EMC 22,039.00                 


50543040 531701 UNIFORMS & SUPPLIES 41.00                        


50543040 531182 CHEMICALS 36,500.00             


50543040 531220 NATURAL GAS 376.00                  


MAINTENANCE


50543042 511105 SALARY 3,709.00                   


50543042 512200 FICA/MEDICARE 236.00                      


50543042 512410 PENSION  4% BASE 158.00                      


50543042 512411 PENSION - MATCH 1,210.00                   


50543042 512901 LIFE INSURANCE 45.00                        


50543042 512901 L-T DISABILITY 96.00                        


WATER PLANT LABORATORY


50543060 531116 OTHER SUPPLIES 991.00                      


50543060 531182 CHEMICALS 991.00                  


DISTRIBUTION


50544020 511300 OVERTIME 6,605.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 262.00                      


522266 REPAIRS METERS & LINES 9,051.00                   


522230 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 15,918.00             


171,459.00$             171,459.00$         


SOLID WASTE


FUND 540 SOLID WASTE


54040500 511105 SALARY 1,524.00                   


512110 MEDICAL INSURANCE HMO 47.00                        


512200 FICA/MEDICARE 129.00                      


512410 PENSION 4% BASE 77.00                        


512411 PENSION - MATCH 35.00                        


512904 MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS 1.00                          


531701 UNIFORMS & SUPPLIES 55.00                        


552111 SELF-INSURANCE  DENTAL 4.00                          


542160 OTHER MOTORIZED EQUIPMENT 1,872.00               
1,872.00$                 1,872.00$             


18 of 18





		Finance- Supplemental Budget Adjustment Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- Supplemental Budget Adjustment Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Parks and Recreation Anita Godbee


Anita Godbee Thursday, September 25, 2008


Approval of staff's request to accept a reimbursement in the amount of $976.49 from Perfect Cut Services, Inc.  which would  


increase Parks and Recreation Ground Supplies Revenue Budget Account by $976.49.


While cutting grass at McCurry Park, contracted landscape company Perfect Cut Services, Inc. inadvertently ran over part of the 


batting cage net and cut the netting.  Perfect Cut Services,  Inc. submitted a check to reimburse the county for the expense of 


replacing the netting. 


Approval of reimbursement and to increase line account 10060110 531110 Ground Supplies in the amount of $976.49.


No


No


Yes Thursday, September 25, 2008


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Planning & Zoning/Community Dev. Peter A. Frisina


Dennis Dutton/Pete Frisina Thursday, September 25, 2008


Consideration of the proposed annexation from the City of Fayetteville to annex 17.85 acres, Piedmont Fayette Hospital, Applicant, 


to develop additional parking and Day Care Facility.  This property is located in Land Lot 129 of the 5th District and Land Lot 9 of the 


7th District, is zoned O-I and R-70, and fronts on Sandy Creek Road.  


No public hearing is required for annexation requests.  


 


The subject property contains a single-family dwelling, existing parking, and newly constructed parking for the Piedmont Fayette 


Hospital.  The hospital structure and some other ancillary uses located on the adjacent property to the south are within the city 


limits of the City of Fayetteville. 


 


The annexation request will be heard by the City of Fayetteville Planning & Zoning Commission on September 23, 2008 and before 


the Mayor and City Council on October 6, 2008.


In order to be in compliance with the laws pertaining to the annexation process, the B.O.C. must chose to "object" or "not object" to 


the annexation. 


N/A


No


No


Yes Thursday, September 25, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes





		Planning and Zoning- Fayettev...ation Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Fayetteville Annexation Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Planning & Zoning/Community Dev. Peter A. Frisina


Pete Frisina/Dennis Dutton Thursday, September 25, 2008


Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance regarding Article VII.  Conditional Uses, Exceptions, 


and Modifications, Section 7-1. Conditional Use Approval, B. Conditional Uses Allowed, 23.  Home Occupation as presented by the 


Planning & Zoning Department.  STAFF HAS REQUESTED THIS ITEM BE CONTINUED UNTIL OCTOBER 23 FOR PUBLIC HEARING.


The P&Z Department was contacted by a property owner with a lot zoned C-H which contains a vacant single-family residence who 


asked that if the property is sold or rented, if the new property owner could have a Home Occupation.  Upon review of the Zoning 


Ordinance, it was discovered that a Single-Family Residence is a Conditional Use  allowed in the C-C, C-H, M-1, M-2, and O-I zoning 


districts.  A Home Occupation is  a Conditional Use allowed in the A-R and residential zoning districts but is not a Conditional Use in 


the C-C, C-H, M-1, M-2, and O-I zoning districts.   Based on these requirements, a single-family residence is not allowed to have a 


Home Occupation in the C-C, C-H, M-1, M-2, and O-I zoning districts. After much discussion, the BOC directed staff on 06/04/08 to 


begin review of the ordinance for a possible remedy and on 08/14/08 asked staff to begin the amendment process, including public 


hearings before the Planning Commission and the Board of Commissioners. Staff is requesting more time for additional review.


PLEASE CONTINUE THIS ITEM UNTIL OCTOBER 23. ALSO, ANNOUNCE THE DATE THE HEARING WILL BE CONTINUED TO. 


 


The P.C. recommended APPROVAL as submitted 5-0.


N/A


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


No


Yes Thursday, September 25, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Planning & Zoning/Community Dev. Peter A. Frisina


Pete Frisina/Tom Williams Thursday, September 25, 2008


Consideration of the annual update of the Capital Improvement Element (CIE) and the Short Term Work Program (STWP) for the 


imposition of Impact Fees for Fire Services and authorization of transmittal to the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) as presented 


by the Planning & Zoning Department.


Annual certification to collect impact fees requires the CIE and STWP be updated and reviewed/approved by ARC and the Dept. of 


Community Affairs (DCA) prior to adoption by local government.  A transmittal resolution must be approved by the local 


government and sent to the ARC for coordination of regional and state review, prior to adoption, per the requirements of the 


Georgia Planning Act of 1989 and the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act. 


Approval of the attached Resolution to transmit the attached documents to ARC and GA DCA for review and approval prior to local 


adoption.


N/A


No


No


Yes Thursday, September 25, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes







STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


 RESOLUTION NO. 2008-14 
 


 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE “FAYETTE COUNTY 2008 
ANNUAL REPORT ON FIRE SERVICES IMPACT  FEES(FY2008), 
INCLUDING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS FOR UPDATES 
TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT AND SHORT-TERM 
WORK PROGRAM (FY2009 – FY2013)”; AND TO AUTHORIZE 
TRANSMITTAL OF SAID DOCUMENT TO THE ATLANTA REGIONAL 
COMMISSION FOR COORDINATION OF  REGIONAL AND STATE 
REVIEW PRIOR TO ADOPTION. 


 
WHEREAS, Fayette County has prepared the “Fayette County 2008 Annual 


Report On Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2008), Including Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments For Updates to the Capital Improvements Element and the Short-Term 
Work Program (FY2009–FY2013);” and 


 
WHEREAS, the annual update was prepared in accordance with requirements of 


the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum Planning Standards and 
Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning established by the Georgia Planning Act 
of 1989; and 


 
WHEREAS, on the 25th day of September, 2008, the Fayette County Board of 


Commissioners conducted a public hearing on the 2008 Fire Services Impact Fee 
Report and proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments.  


 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Fayette County Board of 


Commissioners, does hereby approve the “Fayette County 2008 Annual Report On Fire 
Services Impact Fees (FY2008) Including Comprehensive Plan Amendments For 
Updates To The Capital Improvements Element and the Short-Term Work Program 
(FY2009 – FY2013); and authorizes transmittal to the Atlanta Regional Commission for 
coordination of regional and state review, prior to adoption, as per the requirements of 
the Georgia Planning Act of 1989 and the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act. 


                                         
 So resolved this 25th day of September, 2008. 


 
      FAYETTE COUNTY 
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
      _________________________________ 


     Jack R. Smith, Chairman 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
_____________________________ 
Deputy Clerk 





		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fees Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fees Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fees Resolution










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Planning & Zoning/Community Dev. Peter A. Frisina


Pete Frisina Thursday, September 25, 2008


Consideration of staff's recommendation that  Sumner Road be designated as an authorized street for motorized cart usage.


Mike Flynn on behalf of The Landings Subdivision has requested the designation of Sumner Road for motorized cart usage.  The 


County Code, Chapter 10. Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article III. Motorized Carts, Sec. 10-42. Street Authorization was amended on 


July 24, 2008, to establish issues which may be considered by the B.O.C. in the designation of an authorized street. This item has 


been discussed numerous times by the Board, including input from Planning and Zoning, law enforcement, public works and 


others.


Designation of Sumner Road as an authorized street for motorized cart usage.


N/A


Yes July 24, 2008


No


Yes Thursday, September 25, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes

















		Planning and Zoning- Sumner Road Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Sumner Road Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Public Safety Allen McCullough


Allen McCullough/Pete Nelms Thursday, September 25, 2008


Approval of staff's request for permission to apply for an Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) for Severe Weather 


Warning Projects.                                                   


The Severe Weather Warning Projects offer two dollars in EMPG funding for one dollar in local cash match up to a maximum of 


$25,000 in EMPG funding for direct cost of the project equipment and installation.   SEE ATTACH DOCUMENT FOR COMPLETE 


DETAILS. 


 


Public Safety has a CIP Project which includes  the installation of 2 weather warning sirens, at a cost of about $50,000. for the 2. If the 


County can secure a grant for $25,000.00 or any part thereof, those funds would be used to offset county funds. To date, the county 


has installed 21 sirens. At build-out, approximately 40 will be needed. 


Allow staff to apply for the Emergency Management Performance Grant for matching funds for weather warning sirens. 


Public Safety has a CIP Project for 2 sirens for $50,000. Any grant funds received would be used to offset county funds for this CIP 


Project.


No


No


Yes Thursday, September 25, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes

















		Public Safety- EMPG Agenda Request File.pdf

		Public Safety- EMPG Backup



